10.

11.

CONSORTIUM

Gulf Consortium Board of Directors Agenda
April 6, 2017, 11:00 a.m. Eastern

Florida Department of Environmental Protection
The Carr Building, Room 170

3800 Commonwealth Blvd

Tallahassee, Florida

Dial-In Number: 1-888-670-3525

Participant Passcode: 998 449 5298#

Call to Order
Pledge
Presentation to Leon County, Florida
Public Comment
Opening Remarks
Approval of February 8, 2017 Minutes
Approval of Contract for Permanent Management Services with The Balmoral Group
Board of Director Teleconference Meetings for Gulf Consortium
Receive FY 2015/2016 Independent Financial Audit Results
Project Management Report on Development of State Expenditure Plan: Status Report
on Work Order # 6
Doug Robison
Environmental Science Associates
Approval of Work Order #7: Complete Draft Project List and Conduct Detailed Project
Evaluation and Refinement

Doug Robison
Environmental Science Associates



12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

CONSORTIUM

Preview of Work Order # 8: Conduct Project Leveraging Analysis and Develop Project
Sequencing & Implementation Strategy

Doug Robison

Environmental Science Associates

Discussion of Potential Conceptual Design and Feasibility Study Work
Doug Robison
Environmental Science Associates

Planning Grant Update
14.1 Grant Management and Administration Report
Lisa King/Melissa Beaudry
Langton Consulting
14.2 Analysis of Work Orders Approved and Planning Grant Amount
Ginger Delegal
Interim Manager

Update on Ability to Bond Pot 3 RESTORE Funds
New Business

Public Comment

Upcoming Board Meetings

Wednesday, May 17, 2017

1:00 pm, CST

Emerald Coast Convention Center

1250 Miracle Strip Parkway SE

Ft. Walton Beach, Okaloosa County, Florida

Wednesday, June 28, 2017

Time TBD

Palm Beach County Convention Center

West Palm Beach, Palm Beach County, Florida

In conjunction with the 2017 FAC Annual Conference



19.

CONSORTIUM

Wednesday, September 27, 2017

Time TBD

Embassy Suites Orlando Lake Buena Vista South
Osceola County, Florida

In conjunction with the 2017 FAC Policy Conference

Wednesday, November 15, 2017

Time TBD

Hyatt Regency Sarasota

Sarasota, Sarasota County, Florida

In conjunction with the 2017 FAC Legislative Conference

Adjourn




Notice of Meeting/Workshop Hearing

OTHER AGENCIES AND ORGANIZATIONS

Gulf Consortium

The Gulf Consortium announces a public meeting, to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: Thursday, April 6, 2017, 11:00 am, Eastern Time.

PLACE: Florida Department of Environmental Protection, The Carr Building, Room 170, 3800
Commonwealth Blvd, Tallahassee, Florida

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: The Board of Directors of the Gulf
Consortium will meet to discuss the progress of the state expenditure plan; grant management
and administration; FY2015/2016 independent audit results; the contract with The Balmoral
Group for management services; and, conduct other business.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by contacting: Ginger Delegal at 850-922-4300 or
gdelegal@fl-counties.com; or, see www.FACRestore.com.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special
accommodations to participate in this workshop/meeting is asked to advise the agency at least 3
days before the workshop/meeting by contacting: Ginger Delegal at (850)922-4300 or
gdelegal@fl-counties.com. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the agency
using the Florida Relay Service, 1(800)955-8771 (TDD) or 1(800)955-8770 (\Voice).

If any person decides to appeal any decision made by the Board with respect to any matter
considered at this meeting or hearing, he/she will need to ensure that a verbatim record of the
proceeding is made, which record includes the testimony and evidence from which the appeal is
to be issued.

For more information, you may contact Ginger Delegal at (850)922-4300 or gdelegal @fl-
counties.com; or, see www.FACRestore.com.



https://www.flrules.org/gateway/department.asp?id=1000
https://www.flrules.org/gateway/organization.asp?id=1089
http://www.facrestore.com/

Gulf Consortium Directors, Alternates and Governor's Appointees

2017
County Director and Alternate
Bay . . . .
Commissioner Guy Tunnell, Director; Commissioner Philip Griffitts, Alternate
Charlotte Commissioner Christopher Constance, Director; Commissioners Ken Doherty, Bill Truex,
Stephen R. Deutsch and Joe Tiseo, Alternates
Citrus Commissioner Scott Carnahan, Director; Jeffrey Rogers, Assistant County Administrator/Public
Works Director, Alternate
Collier Commissioner Burt Saunders, Director; Commissioner Penny Taylor, Alternate; Director Gary
McAlpin, 2nd Alternate
Dixie . . .
Tim Alexander, County Administrator/Director of Emergency Management
Escambia . . . - .
Commissioner Grover Robinson, Director; Commissioner Doug Underhill, Alternate
Franklin . . . .
Commissioner Cheryl Sanders, Director; Michael Moron, County Coordinator, Alternate
Gulf Warren Yeager, Director; Donald Butler, County Administrator, Alternate
Hernando . . ..
Commissioner Wayne Dukes, Director; County Administrator Len Sossamon, Alternate
Hillsborough . . . -
Commissioner Les Miller, Director; Commissioner Ken Hagan, Alternate
Jefferson . . . . . .
Commissioner Betsy Barfield, Director; County Coordinator Parrish Barwick, Alternate
Lee Commissioner John Manning, Director; Commissioner Larry Kiker, Alternate; Kurt Harclerode,
2nd Alternate
Levy Commissioner John Meeks, Director; County Coordinator Tisha Whitehurst, Restore/Grants
Coordinator, Alternate
Manatee .. . . . .
Commissioner Carol Whitmore, Director; Charlie Hunsicker, Natural Resources Dept., Alternate
Monroe . . . .
Commissioner George Neugent, Director; Commissioner David Rice, Alternate
Okaloosa . . . -
Commissioner Kelly Windes, Director; Commissioner Carolyn Ketchel, Alternate
Pasco . . . .
Commissioner Jack Mariano, Director; Commissioner Kathryn Starkey, Alternate
Pinellas . . . . .
Commissioner Charlie Justice, Director; Coastal Manager Andy Squires, Alternate
Santa Rosa L . . L
Commissioner Rob Williamson, Director; Commissioner Lane Lynchard, Alternate
Sarasota .. . . .
Commissioner Charles Hines, Director; Laird Wreford, Natural Resources Manager, Alternate
Taylor . . .
Commissioner Jim Moody, Director




Gulf Consortium Directors, Alternates and Governor's Appointees

2017
Wakulla David Edwards, County Administrator, Director; Commissioner Ralph Thomas, Alternate
Walton Commissioner Sara Comander, Director; Larry Jones, County Manager, Alternate
Governor's Pam Anderson, Panama City; Peter Bos, Destin; Lino Maldonado, Niceville; Collier Merrill,
Appointees Pensacola; Mike Sole, Tallahassee; Neal Wade, Panama City




AGENDA ITEM 6



Gulf Consortium Board of Directors
April 6, 2017

Agenda Item 6
Approval of February 8, 2017 Board of Directors Minutes

Statement of Issue:
This agenda item proposes approval of the February 8, 2017 Board of Directors
minutes.

Options:
(1) Approve the February 8, 2017 minutes, as presented; or

(2) Amend and then approve the February 8, 2017 minutes.

Recommendation:
Motion to approve the February 8, 2017 Board of Directors meeting minutes, as
presented.

Prepared by:

Ginger Delegal

Florida Association of Counties
Interim Manager

On: March 31, 2017

Attachment:
Draft 2/8/17 Minutes

Action Taken:

Motion to: , Made by: ;

Seconded by:

Approved ; Approved as amended ; Defeated



Gulf Consortium Meeting
February 8, 2017, 2:00 p.m. (ET)
Frederick Karl Center
601 E. Kennedy Boulevard,
26th Floor, Conference Rooms A & B
Tampa, Hillsborough County, Florida

Board Members in Attendance: Commissioner Guy Tunnell (Bay), Commissioner Chris Constance
(Charlotte), Commissioner Scott Carnahan (Citrus), Gary McAlpin (Collier), Timothy Alexander (Dixie),
Commissioner Grover Robinson (Escambia), Warren Yeager (Gulf), Commissioner Wayne Dukes
(Hernando), Commissioner Les Miller (Hillsborough), Commissioner Betsy Barfield (Jefferson), Kurt
Harclerode (Lee), Tisha Whitehurst (Levy), Commissioner Carol Whitmore (Manatee), Commissioner Kelly
Windes (Okaloosa), Commissioner Jack Mariano (Pasco), Commissioner Charlie Justice (Pinellas),
Commissioner Rob Williamson (Santa Rosa), Mike Sole and Collier Merrill.

Agenda Item #1 — Call to Order
Chairman Grover Robinson (Escambia) called the meeting to order at 2:01 pm (ET).

Agenda Item #3 — Public Comment
Jessica Bibza — National Wildlife Federation
Chris Holley — Gulf County

Agenda Item #5 — Approval of December 2, 2016 Minutes

Chairman Grover Robinson (Escambia) presented the minutes from the December 2, 2016 meeting of the

Gulf Consortium. A motion to approve the minutes was presented by Commissioner Chris Constance

(Charlotte) and seconded by Commissioner Jack Mariano (Pasco). The motion passed unanimously.
ACTION: APPROVED

Agenda Item #6 — 2017 Officer Elections

Chairman Grover Robinson (Escambia) recognized Ginger Delegal, Interim Manager, who gave a detailed
overview of the agenda item including the process by which the officers are elected each year and briefed
the Board on the Executive Committee’s action at its meeting of February 1, 2017. There being no questions
or comments by the Board, a motion to approve the slate of candidates:

Commissioner Grover Robinson, Chairman (Escambia)
Warren Yeager, Vice-Chairman (Gulf)
Commissioner George Neugent, Secretary-Treasurer (Monroe)
Commissioner Chris Constance, At-Large Officer (Charlotte)
Commissioner Jack Mariano, At-Large Officer (Pasco)



was made by Commissioner Guy Tunnel (Bay) and seconded by Commissioner Carol Whitmore (Manatee).
The motion was approved unanimously.
ACTION: APPROVED

Agenda Item #7 — Evaluation Team Report for Procurement of Permanent Manager to the Consortium
Chairman Grover Robinson (Escambia) recognized Shelly Kelley, Leon County Purchasing Director, who gave
a detailed overview of the agenda item and the process by which the Evaluation Team arrived at the
recommendation to the Gulf Consortium Board of Directors. Ms. Kelley recognized Len Sossamon, Chairman
of the Evaluation Committee, who announced the recommendation of The Balmoral Group, following
personal interviews of the top two firms, The Balmoral Group and North Highland earlier that morning.
There were no questions or comments and a motion was made by Commissioner Carol Whitmore
(Manatee) to approve the recommendation of the Evaluation Team of The Balmoral Group and to direct
the General Counsel to negotiate a contract which will come back before the Board for approval and
execution at its April 6, 2017 Board meeting. The motion was seconded by Commissioner Jack Mariano
(Pasco) and passed unanimously.
ACTION: APPROVED

Agenda Item #8.1 — SEP Project Management Update: Status Report on Work Order #6

Chairman Grover Robinson (Escambia) recognized Doug Robison with ESA who gave a detailed power point
presentation to the Board on work performed under Work Order 6, including recapping a meeting held with
FDEP on January 26, 2017. There was considerable Board discussion with questions posed and responded
to by the consultant team. There was no action required on this agenda item as it was informational only.

Agenda Item #8.2 — SEP Project Management Update: Project Leveraging Opportunities

Chairman Grover Robinson (Escambia) recognized Lisa King with Langton Consulting who gave overview of
the agenda item and a detailed discussion on possible leveraging opportunities which included the
Wastewater State Revolving Loan Fund, the Drinking Water State Revolving Loan Fund and the Water
Infrastructure Finance and Innovation Act (WIFIA). Board discussion ensued with questions posed and
responses given by Ms. King. No action was required on this item.

Agenda Item #8.3 — SEP Project Management Update: Preview of Work Order #7 and #8

Chairman Grover Robinson (Escambia) recognized Doug Robison with ESA who gave a detailed power point
presentation to the Board on the preview of Work Orders # 7 and #8 which include the development of the
project evaluation criteria and to conduct detailed project evaluation and refinement under the PSEP. After
a lengthy Board discussion, a motion was made by Commissioner Kelly Windes (Okaloosa) to send a letter
to the Florida delegation from the Gulf Consortium Board regarding the bonding of RESTORE Act monies.
The motion was seconded by Warren Yeager (Gulf) and passed unanimously.

ACTION: APPROVED

Considerable Board discussion and questions posed and responded to by the consultant team ensued and,
thereafter, a motion was made by Commissioner Rob Williamson (Santa Rosa) to task ESA to identify the
planning cost needed to get the projects identified under Work Orders # 7 and #8 to SEP submission. The
motion was seconded by Commissioner Jack Mariano (Pasco) and passed unanimously.

ACTION: APPROVED

2



Agenda Item #9.1 - Planning Grant Update: Grant Management & Administration Report

Chairman Grover Robinson (Escambia) recognized Mike Langton with Langton Consulting who briefed the
Board on the grant management status, including filing the Financial Progress Report due to the Restoration
Council on April 30, 2017. There were no questions or comments and no action was required on this item.

Agenda Item #9.2 - Planning Grant Update: Analysis of Work Orders Approved and Planning Post Award
Process/Procedure

Chairman Grover Robinson (Escambia) recognized Ginger Delegal, Interim Manager, who gave a detailed
overview of the work orders approved to date along with the amounts expended on behalf of the
Consortium. There were no questions and no action was required on this item.

Agenda Item #10 — Interim Manager Report

Chairman Grover Robinson (Escambia) recognized Ginger Delegal, Interim Manager, who gave a detailed
overview of the Interim Manager activities since the last Board meeting. Ms. Delegal also thanked
Hillsborough County for hosting the Gulf Consortium Board and thanked Leon County for allowing the Gulf
Consortium use of their professional procurement services. There were no questions and no action was
required on this item.

Agenda Item #11 - General Counsel Report

Chairman Grover Robinson (Escambia) recognized Lynn Hoshihara, General Counsel, who gave an overview
of the General Counsel’s activities since the last Board meeting. There were no questions and no action
was required on this item.

Agenda Item #12 — New Business
Commissioner Carol Whitmore (Manatee) requested that conference call ability be allowed at every Gulf

Consortium Board meeting as well as the ability to vote via conference call. After Board discussion, Ginger
Delegal, Interim Manager, stated that the request would be brought before the Board at its April 6, 2017
meeting.

Agenda Item #13 — Public Comment
Bryan Griffith

Agenda Item #15 — Adjournment
There being no further business, the Board adjourned at approximately 4:36 pm (ET).

Respectfully submitted,

Grover Robinson
Chairman



AGENDA ITEM 7



Gulf Consortium Board of Directors
April 6, 2017

Agenda Item 7
Approval of Contract for Management Services Between
The Gulf Consortium and The Balmoral Group, LLC

Executive Summary:

This agenda item seeks Board approval of the attached proposed Agreement for
Management Services between the Gulf Consortium and The Balmoral Group,
LLC.

Background:

On October 19, 2012, the Consortium hired the Florida Association of Counties
(FAC) to provide Interim Management Services to the Consortium. The original
contract contained a one-year term. That term was then extended in September
2013 until "the effective date of the Consortium's hiring, engaging or retaining a
permanent Manager, unless an earlier expiration date is mutually agreed to in
writing."

In anticipation of planning grant funds, the Consortium began the process of hiring
a permanent Manager by approving the issuance of a Request for Proposals (RFP)
utilizing the procurement services of Leon County Purchasing Department. The
RFP was issued on June 23, 2015. However, the RFP process was suspended
on July 15, 2015 due to the Restoration Council confirming that planning grant
funds would not be allowed for much of the costs of the day-to-day functions
performed by the Manager of the Consortium.

Upon clarifying the contract funding issues, on December 2, 2016, the Consortium
approved conducting a competitive procurement process of hiring a permanent
Manager through the issuance of an RFP. On February 8, 2017, the Board voted
unanimously to accept the Evaluation Team’s recommendation and authorized the
negotiation of a contract with The Balmoral Group.

Attached for the Board’s consideration is a proposed Agreement for Management
Services for a term of two years commencing May 1, 2017 through April 31, 2019.
Management Services for the initial two-year period will not to exceed $8,588 per
month. If the Agreement is extended beyond the initial two-year period, the
compensation shall not exceed $7,642 per month.

At its March 30, 2017 meeting, the Gulf Consortium Executive Committee
unanimously voted to recommend approval of the proposed Agreement.

Options:
(1) Approve the proposed Agreement.

(2) Do not approve the proposed Agreement.



(3) Provide other direction.

Fiscal Impact:

Currently, the Consortium has budgeted $60,000 annually for interim management
services through the county contributions and $50,000 annually, for two years, for
contract management services through the planning grant.

If approved, the proposed Agreement with The Balmoral Group totals $103,056
annually.

Attachment:
Agreement for Management Services between the Gulf Consortium and The
Balmoral Group, LLC.

Prepared by:

Lynn M. Hoshihara

Nabors, Giblin & Nickerson, P.A.
General Counsel

Date: March 31, 2017

Action Taken:

Motion to: , Made by: ;

Seconded by:

Approved ; Approved as amended ; Defeated



AGREEMENT FOR MANAGEMENT SERVICES BETWEEN
THE GULF CONSORTIUM AND THE BALMORAL GROUP, LLC

THIS AGREEMENT is by and between the Gulf Consortium, which is a legal entity and
public body organized and created pursuant to an interlocal agreement among the 23 county
governments along Florida's Gulf Coast (the "Consortium"), and The Balmoral Group, LLC,
which is a Florida limited liability company, whose business address is 165 Lincoln Avenue,
Winter Park, Florida 32789 (the "Contractor").

WHEREAS, the Consortium desires to obtain the professional services of a
management company to aid in conducting the business of the Consortium; and

WHEREAS, the Contractor represents that it has the experience and expertise in the
type of professional services that will be required by the Consortium; and

WHEREAS, the Consortium, through a selection process conducted in accordance with
the requirements of law and Consortium policy, has selected Contractor as the entity to
provide management services to the Consortium; and

WHEREAS, the Consortium seeks to engage the Contractor for the purpose of providing
management services.

NOW, THEREFORE, the parties hereto agree as follows:

1. SERVICES TO BE PROVIDED

The Contractor hereby agrees to provide to the Consortium management services in
accordance with:

A. The Request for Proposal for Management Services for the Gulf Consortium # BC-
01-10-17-16 (“RFP”), which is attached hereto and incorporated herein as Exhibit A,
to the extent that the RFP is not inconsistent with this Agreement; and

B. The Contractor's submissions to the RFP, which is attached hereto and incorporated
herein as Exhibit B, to the extent that the submission is not inconsistent with this
Agreement or with Exhibit A.

2. FUND AVAILABILITY

The performance of the Consortium of any of its obligations under this Agreement shall
be subject to and contingent upon the availability of funds lawfully expendable for the
purposes of this Agreement for the current and any future periods provided for within this
Agreement.

The following statement is included in this Agreement in accordance with section 218.77,
Florida Statutes, regarding requirements for disclosure of contingencies associated with
federal requirements: The payment of costs to the Contractor for the management
services is contingent upon the receipt of federal funds and federal approval.

1



3. TERM OF AGREEMENT

The Agreement shall be for a period of two years, commencing on May 1, 2017, and shall
continue until April 31, 2019. After the initial two year period, at the sole option of the
Consortium, this Agreement may be extended for no more than two additional one year
periods. Such one year extensions will be automatic unless the Consortium provides
written notice of non-renewal to the Contractor no less than thirty (30) days prior to the
expiration date of the then-current term.

4. COMPENSATION

The Contractor agrees that for the performance of the Services as outlined in Section 1
above, it shall be compensated by the Gulf Consortium in a manner that maximizes the
use of federal funds to pay for such services and in no event shall the compensation
exceed EIGHT THOUSAND FIVE HUNDRED EIGHTY EIGHT DOLLARS ($8,588) per
month for the initial two-year period. The compensation shall include all services to be
provided, including expenses such as copying, long distance phone, travel, and general
overhead. If this Agreement is extended beyond the initial two-year period, Contractor’s
compensation for subsequent years shall not exceed SEVEN THOUSAND SIX
HUNDRED FORTY TWO DOLLARS ($7,642) per month.

5. PAYMENTS

In accordance with part VIl of Chapter 218, Florida Statutes, the Consortium shall make
such payments within forty-five (45) days of submission and approval of invoice for
services.

6. STATUTORY PROMPT PAYMENT INFORMATION REQUIREMENTS

A. Notices to the Consortium are to be submitted to:

Name: Lynn M. Hoshihara, Esq.
Street Address: 1500 Mahan Drive, Suite 200
City, State, Zip Code: Tallahassee, FL 32308
Telephone: 850-224-4070

E-mail: lhoshihara@ngnlaw.com

B. Notices to the Contractor are to be submitted to:

Name: Valerie Seidel

Street Address: 165 Lincoln Avenue

City, State, Zip Code:  Winter Park, FL 32789
Telephone: 407-629-2185

E-mail: vseidel@balmoralgroup.us

C. Invoice: The Contractor shall submit requests for payment to the Consortium in the
following form:



A numbered invoice document with date of invoice; reference of the Consortium
contract number; itemized listing of all goods and services being billed with unit
prices and extended pricing; Contractor's name, address, billing contact person
information, and Federal tax identification number. The invoice must be properly
addressed and delivered to the contact identified above.

D. Payment Dispute Resolution: Resolution 2015-01 of the Consortium establishes the
Gulf Consortium Purchasing Policy for Management Services. The Resolution and
part VIl of chapter 218, Florida Statutes, establish the policy and procedures for
payment disputes that apply to this Agreement.

7. STATUS

The Contractor at all times relevant to this Agreement shall be an independent contractor
and in no event shall the Contractor nor any employees or sub-contractors under it be
considered to be employees of the Consortium.

8. INSURANCE

Contractor shall procure and maintain for the duration of this Agreement insurance
against claims for injuries to persons or damages to property which may arise from or in
connection with the performance of the work hereunder by the Contractor, his agents,
representatives, employees or subcontractors.

A. Minimum Limits of Insurance. Contractor shall maintain limits no less than:

1.

General Liability: $1,000,000 combined single limit per occurrence for bodily
injury, personal injury and property damage with a $2,000,000 annual
aggregate.

Automobile Liability: $1,000,000 combined single limit per accident for bodily
injury and property damage. (Non-owned, Hired Car).

Workers' Compensation and Employers Liability: Insurance covering all
employees meeting Statutory Limits in compliance with the applicable state and
federal laws and Employer's Liability with a limit of $500,000 per accident,
$500,000 disease policy limit, $500,000 disease each employee. Waiver of
Subrogation in lieu of Additional Insured is required.

Professional Liability Insurance, including errors and omissions: for all services
provided under the terms of this Agreement with minimum limits of
$1,000,000.00 Dollars per occurrence; or claims made with "tail coverage"
extending three (3) years beyond the term of the Agreement. Proof of "tail
coverage" must be submitted with the invoice for final payment.

B. Deductibles and Self-Insured Retentions



Any deductibles or self-insured retentions must be declared to and approved by the
Consortium. At the option of the Consortium, either: the insurer shall reduce or
eliminate such deductibles or self-insured retentions as respects the Consortium, its
officers, officials, employees and volunteers; or the Consortium shall procure a bond
guaranteeing payment of losses and related investigations, claim administration and
defense expenses.

Other Insurance Provisions
The policies are to contain, or be endorsed to contain, the following provisions:

1. General Liability and Automobile Liability Coverages (the Consortium is to be
named as Additional Insured).

a. The Consortium, its officers, officials, employees and volunteers are to be
covered as insureds as respects; liability arising out of activities performed
by or on behalf of the Contractor, including the insured's general
supervision of the Contractor; products and completed operations of the
Contractor; premises owned, occupied or used by the Contractor; or
automobiles owned, leased, hired or borrowed by the Contractor. The
coverage shall contain no special limitations on the scope of protections
afforded the Consortium, its officers, officials, employees or volunteers.

b. The Contractor's insurance coverage shall be primary insurance as
respects the Consortium, it officers, officials, employees and volunteers.
Any insurance of self-insurance maintained by the Consortium, its officers,
officials, employees or volunteers shall be excess of the Contractor's
insurance and shall not contribute with it.

c. Any failure to comply with reporting provisions of the policies shall not
affect coverage provided to the Consortium, its officers, officials,

employees or volunteers.

d. The Contractor's insurance shall apply separately to each insured against
whom claim is made or suit is brought, except with respect to the limits of
the insurer's liability.

2. All Coverages

Each insurance policy required by this clause shall be endorsed to state that
coverage shall not be suspended, voided, canceled by either party, reduced in
coverage or in limits except after thirty (30) days' prior written notice by certified
mail, return receipt requested, has been given to the Consortium.

Acceptability of Insurers. Insurance is to be placed with insurers with a Best's rating
of no less than A:VII.

Verification of Coverage. Contractor shall furnish the Consortium with certificates of

4



insurance and with original endorsements effecting coverage required by this clause.
The certificates and endorsements for each insurance policy are to be signed by a
person authorized by that insurer to bind coverage on its behalf. All certificates and
endorsements are to be received and approved by the Consortium before work
commences. The Consortium reserves the right to require complete, certified copies
of all required insurance policies at any time.

F. Subcontractors. Contractors shall include all subcontractors as insureds under its
policies or shall furnish separate certificates and endorsements for each
subcontractor. All coverages for subcontractors shall be subject to all of the
requirements stated herein.

9. PERMITS
The Contractor shall pay for and obtain all necessary permits as required by law.

10. LICENSES
The Contractor shall be responsible for obtaining and maintaining its city or county
occupational license and any licenses required pursuant to the laws of Leon County, the
City of Tallahassee, or the State of Florida. Should the Contractor, by reason of

revocation, failure to renew, or any other reason, fail to maintain his license to operate,
the Contractor shall be in default as of the date such license is lost.

11.  ASSIGNMENTS

A. In providing services under this Agreement, the Contractor agrees to utilize the
services of the team of consultants designated in its bid proposals. If the Contractor
desires to utilize the services of consultants that were not part of the Contractor’s
proposal submission team, it can do so only with the written approval of the
Consortium.

B. This Agreement shall not be assigned or sublet as a whole or in part without the
written consent of the Consortium. The Contractor shall not assign any monies due
or to become due to it hereunder without the previous written consent of the
Consortium.

12. INDEMNIFICATION

The Contractor agrees to indemnify and hold harmless the Consortium, its officials,
officers, representatives, employees and agents, from and against any and all claims,
damages, liabilities, losses, costs, or suits of any nature whatsoever arising out of,
because of, or due to any negligent acts or omissions of the Contractor, its delegates,
employees and agents, arising out of or under this Agreement, including reasonable
attorney's fees. The Contractor acknowledges that ten dollars ($10.00) of the amount
paid to the Contractor is sufficient consideration for the Contractor's indemnification of the
Consortium.



13.

AUDITS, RECORDS, AND RECORDS RETENTION

The Contractor agrees:

a.

To establish and maintain books, records, and documents (including electronic
storage media) in accordance with generally accepted accounting procedures and
practices, which sufficiently and properly reflect all revenues and expenditures of
funds provided by the Consortium under this Agreement.

To the extent the Contractor is performing services on behalf of the Consortium, the
Contractor must:

(i) Keep and maintain public records that ordinarily and necessarily
would be required by the Consortium in order to perform the service;

(i) Provide the public with access to public records on the same terms
and conditions that the Consortium would provide the records and at
a cost that not exceed the cost provided in Chapter 119, Florida
Statutes, or as otherwise provided by law;

(i) Ensure that public records that are exempt or confidential and
exempt from public records disclosure requirements are not
disclosed except as authorized by law;

(iv): Meet all requirements for retaining public records and transfer, at no
cost, to the Consortium all public records in possession of the
Contractor upon termination of this Agreement and destroy any
duplicate public records that are exempt or confidential and exempt
from public records disclosure requirements. All records stored
electronically must be provided to the Consortium in a format that is
compatible with the Consortium's information technology systems.

To retain all client records, financial records, supporting documents, statistical
records, and any other documents (including electronic storage media) pertinent to
this Agreement for a period of five (5) years after termination of the Agreement, or if
an audit has been initiated and audit findings have not been resolved at the end of
five (5) years, the records shall be retained until resolution of the audit findings or
any litigation which may be based on the terms of this Agreement.

Upon completion or termination of the Agreement and at the request of the
Consortium, the Contractor shall cooperate with the Consortium to facilitate the
duplication and transfer of any said records or documents during the required
retention period as specified in this Section.

To assure that these records shall be subject at all reasonable times to inspection,
review, or audit by Federal, state, or other personnel duly authorized by the
Consortium.

Persons duly authorized by the Consortium and Federal auditors, pursuant to 45

CFR, Part 92.36(1)(10), shall have full access to and the right to examine any of
provider's Agreement and related records and documents, regardless of the form in

6



which kept, at all reasonable times for as long as records are retained.

g. To include these aforementioned audit and record keeping requirements in all
approved subcontracts and assignments.

14. MONITORING

To permit persons duly authorized by the Consortium to inspect any records, papers,
documents, facilities, goods, and services of the provider which are- relevant to this
Agreement, and interview any clients and employees of the provider to assure the
Consortium of satisfactory performance of the terms and conditions of this Agreement.

Following such evaluation, the Consortium will deliver to the Contractor a written report of
its findings and will include written recommendations with regard to the Contractor's
performance of the terms and conditions of this Agreement. The Contractor shall correct
all noted deficiencies identified by the Consortium within the specified period of time set
forth in the recommendations. The Contractor’s failure to correct noted deficiencies may,
at the sole and exclusive discretion of the Consortium, result in any one or any
combination of the following: (1) the Contractor being deemed in breach or default of this
Agreement; (2) the withholding of payments to the Contractor by the Consortium; and (3)
the termination of this Agreement for cause.

15. TERMINATION

The Consortium may terminate this Agreement without cause, by giving the Contractor
thirty (30) days written notice of termination. Either party may terminate this Agreement
for cause by giving the other party hereto thirty (30) days written notice of termination.
The Consortium shall not be required to give Contractor such thirty (30) day written notice
if, in the opinion of the Consortium, the Contractor is unable to perform its obligations
hereunder, or if in the Consortium's opinion, the services being provided are not
satisfactory. In such case, the Consortium may immediately terminate the Agreement by
mailing a notice of termination to the Contractor. The Consortium may retain/withhold
payment for nonperformance if deemed appropriate to do so by the Consortium.

16. PUBLIC ENTITY CRIMES STATEMENT

In accordance with Section 287.133, Florida Statutes, Contractor hereby certifies that to
the best of his knowledge and belief neither Contractor nor his affiliates has been
convicted of a public entity crime. Contractor and his affiliates shall provide the
Consortium with a completed public entity crime statement form no later than February 15
of each year this Agreement is in effect. Violation of this section by the Contractor shall
be grounds for cancellation of this Agreement by the Consortium.

17. UNAUTHORIZED ALIENS

The Contractor agrees that unauthorized aliens shall not be employed nor utilized in the
performance of the requirements of this solicitation. The Consortium shall consider the
employment or utilization of unauthorized aliens a violation of Section 274A(e) of the

7



Immigration and Naturalization Act (8 U.S.C. 1324a). Such violation shall be cause for
unilateral termination of this Agreement by the Consortium.

18.

a.

EMPLOYMENT ELIGIBILITY VERIFICATION

Contractor agrees that it will enroll and participate in the federal E-Verify Program for
Employment Verification under the terms provided in the "Memorandum of
Understanding" governing the program. Contractor further agrees to provide to the
Consortium,  within  thity days of the effective date of this
contract/amendment/extension, documentation of such enroliment in the form of a
copy of the E-Verify "Edit Company Profile' screen", which contains proof of
enroliment in the E-Verify Program (this page can be accessed from the "Edit
Company Profile” link on the left navigation menu of the E-Verify employer's
homepage).

Contractor further agrees that it will require each subcontractor that performs work
under this contract to enroll and participate in the E-Verify Program within sixty days
of the effective date of this contract/amendment/extension or within sixty days of the
effective date of the contract between the Contractor and the subcontractor,
whichever is later. The Contractor shall obtain from the subcontractor(s) a copy of
the "Edit Company Profile" screen indicating enrollment in the E-Verify Program and
make such record(s) available to the Agency upon request.

Contractor will utilize the U.S. Department of Homeland Security's E-Verify system to
verify the employment eligibility of: (a) all persons employed during the term of the
Agreement by Contractor to perform employment duties within Florida; and (b) all
persons (including subcontractors) assigned by Contractor to perform work pursuant
to the Agreement.

1)  Contractor must use E-Verify to initiate verification of employment eligibility for
all persons employed during the term of the Agreement by Contractor to
perform employment duties within Florida within 3 business days after the date
of hire.

2) Contractor must initiate verification of each person (including subcontractors)
assigned by Contractor to perform work pursuant to the Agreement within 60
calendar days after the date of execution of this contract or within 30 days after
assignment to perform work pursuant to the Agreement, whichever is later.

Contractor further agrees to maintain records of its participation and compliance with
the provisions of the E-Verify program, including participation by its subcontractors
as provided above, and to make such records available to the Consortium or other
authorized state entity consistent with the terms of the Memorandum of

Understanding.

Compliance with the terms of this Employment Eligibility Verification provision is
made an express condition of this contract and the Consortium may treat a failure to
comply as a material breach of the contract.

8



19. NON-WAIVER

Failure by the Consortium to enforce or insist upon compliance with any of the terms or
conditions of this Agreement or failure to give notice or declare this Agreement terminated
shall not constitute a general waiver or relinquishment of the same, or of any other terms,
conditions or acts; but the same shall be and remain at all times in full force and effect.

20. DELAY

No claim for damages or any claim other than for an extension of time shall be made or
asserted against the Consortium by reason of any delays. The Contractor shall not be
entitled to an increase in the contract sum or payment or compensation of any kind from
the Consortium for direct, indirect, consequential, impact or other costs, expenses or
damages, including but limited to costs of acceleration or inefficiency, arising because of
delay, disruption, interference or hindrance from any cause whatsoever, whether such
delay, disruption, interference or hindrance be reasonable or unreasonable, foreseeable
or unforeseeable, or avoidable or unavoidable; provided, however, that this provision shall
not preclude recovery of damages by the Contractor for hindrances or delays due solely
to fraud, bad faith, or active interference on the part of the Consortium or its agents.
Otherwise, the Contractor shall be entitled only to extensions of the contract time as the
sole and exclusive remedy for such resulting delay, in accordance with and to the extent
specifically provided above.

21. ENTIRE AGREEMENT

This Agreement constitutes the entire understanding between the parties with respect to
the transaction contemplated herein and supersedes all prior written or oral negotiations,
commitments or writings. All future modifications to this Agreement shall be in writing
signed by both parties.

22. VENUE

Venue for all actions arising under this Agreement shall lie in Leon County, Florida.

23. CONSTRUCTION

The validity, construction, and effect of this Agreement shall be governed by the laws of
the State of Florida.

24. CONFLICTING TERMS AND CONDITIONS

In the instance that any other agreement exists concerning the matters herein, then the
terms and conditions in this Agreement shall prevail over all other terms and conditions.



WHERETO, the parties have set their hands and seals effective the date whereon the last
party executes this Agreement.

GULF CONSORTIUM THE BALMORAL GROUP, LLC
By: By: @
Grover Robinson, Chairman President or designee
Date: Title:  Yresideut
Date: 2| 8|a
SECRETARY/TREASURER:
By:

George Neugent

Date:

Approved as to Form:

BY:

Lynn M. Hoshihara, Esq.
Nabors, Giblin & Nickerson, P.A.
General Counsel to

the Gulf Consortium

10



AGENDA ITEM 8



Gulf Consortium Board of Directors
April 6, 2017

Agenda Item 8
Discussion of Teleconference Gulf Consortium
Board of Directors’ Meetings

Executive Summary:
This agenda item calls for discussion on providing conference call ability for the
full Gulf Consortium Board meetings.

Background:

Gulf Consortium staff has provided the Executive Committee and Board of
Directors information and analysis on the teleconferencing ability and reliability
for Gulf Consortium Board meetings in 2015 and 2016. The Board has directed
FAC staff to bring back for discussion the ability to hold teleconference meetings
and for members of the Gulf Consortium Board of Directors to be able to attend
and vote via teleconference if unable to attend in person.

Analysis:

The issues for the Board to discuss are two-fold: (1) as a matter of Board policy,
whether it wants to allow remote, full participation in Board meetings by Directors
or their alternates or whether it wants to continue the culture of conducting
business at in-person meetings; and, (2) if full, remote participation is allowed,
the potential for unreliable telephonic access exists because of the transitory
nature of the Board meetings.

The Consortium has a sufficient budget to cover the costs of providing remote
participation. In the past two years, the Consortium has incurred the following
amounts, indicated by location for varying levels and success for remote access.

Meeting Date | Location/Facility AV Cost for Telephone Number in
Meeting Access Attendance
Available
FDEP -
1/21/2015 Tallahassee $846.00 No 23
FDEP —
3/25/2015 Tallahassee $846.00 No 27
Sawgrass
6/19/2015 Marriott — St. $2,891.68 (basic
Johns County mics and sound) No 22
St. Petersburg
8/26/2015 Hilton — Pinellas $2,558.58 No 26
County
Amelia Island
11/18/2015 Plantation — $1,747.95 Yes 22
Nassau County (no issues)




Meeting Date | Location/Facility AV Cost for Telephone Number in
Meeting Access Attendance
Available
Hillsborough Yes (no
4/21/2016 County Center $0 issues) 19
6/28/2016 Hyatt Regency $2,880.29 Yes (phone 20
Orlando system could
not connect
properly — 2
way
communication
not working
correctly)
Hutchinson
9/13/2016 Island Marriott — $1,740.60 Yes (could not 18
Martin County get phone line
to work
properly)
12/2/2016 Hilton Buena $0 Yes (feedback 23
Vista Orlando issues; hotel
did not charge
for AV due to
issues)
2/8/2017 Hillsborough Yes (no
County Center $0 issues) 21

This agenda item was discussed by the Executive Committee at its meeting held
on March 30, 2017 and direction was given to staff to place this item for general
discussion on the full Board agenda; however, all Executive Committee members
who were in attendance on the call, Commissioner Grover Robinson (Escambia),

Warren Yeager (Gulf), Commissioner

George Neugent

(Monroe) and

Commissioner Chris Constance (Charlotte) rejected the idea of moving to
telephonic Board of Director meetings.

Prepared by:

Ginger Delegal

Florida Association of Counties

Interim Manager

On: March 31, 2017




Action Taken:

Motion to: , Made by:

Seconded by:

Approved ; Approved as amended ; Defeated



AGENDA ITEM 9



Gulf Consortium Board of Directors
April 6, 2017

Agenda Item 9
Receipt of the FY 2015-2016 Independent Financial Audit

Statement of Issue:
Discuss and receive the FY 2015/2016 Independent Financial Audit.

Background:

Florida law, under section 218.39, Florida Statutes, requires that an annual independent
financial audit be conducted on the Gulf Consortium. The Consortium conducted a
competitive selection process that led to the engagement of Warren Averett to conduct
the Consortium’s FY 2013/2014 independent audit. The Executive Committee was
empowered to extend that contract for additional years, which it did on at its September
9, 2016 meeting for FY 2015/2016.

The FY 2015/2016 audit is complete and the report finalized. The report will be filed
with both the State of Florida’s Chief Financial Officer and the Florida Auditor General
as further required by Florida law.

The auditor’s opinion is that:

The financial statements..., in all material respects, the respective financial
position of the business—type activities of the Gulf Consortium, as of
September 30, 2016, and the respective changes in financial position,
and,....cash flows thereof are in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America.

There were no negative management notes or comments in the report. The entire
report is attached for review and discussion. Members of the Warren Averett firm were
available for questions during the March 30, 2017 Executive Committee meeting. As a
result of that presentation, the Executive Committee is recommending receipt of the
final audit report.

Fiscal Impact:

Under the Consortium’s contract for services with Warren Averett for the FY 2015/2016
independent financial audit, the Consortium will pay Warren Averett $3,000.00 within 45
days of receipt of the invoice.

Recommendation:
Discuss and receive the final report.

Attachment:
FY 2015/2016 Independent Financial Audit.



Prepared by:

Ginger Delegal

Florida Association of Counties
Interim Manager

On: March 30, 2017

Action Taken:

Motion to: , Made by:

Seconded by:

Approved ; Approved as amended

: Defeated



GULF CONSORTIUM
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2016

w Warren
Averett

CPAs AND ADVISORS



GULF CONSORTIUM
TABLE OF CONTENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2016

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Proprietary Fund —Business-Type Activities

Statement of Net Position
Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position
Statement of Cash Flows
Notes to the Financial Statements
COMPLIANCE SECTION

Independent Accountants’ Report on an Examination of Compliance Requirements
in Accordance with Chapter 10.550, Rules of the Auditor General

Independent Auditors’ Report an Internal-Control Over Financial
Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an
Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with
Government Auditing Standards

Management Letter

10

14

15

17



A Warren 45 Eglin Parkway, N.E., Suite 301
‘ ‘ AVE rett Fort Walton Beach, FL 32548

CPAs AND ADVISORS 850.244.5121
warrenaverett.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Members of the Gulf Consortium

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited.the accompanying financial statements of the business-type activities of the Gulf
Consortium (the Consortium), as of and for the year ended September 30, 2016, and the related
notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Consortium's basic financial
statements, as listed in the table of contents.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting<principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this
includes the design, implementation, . and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation
and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that
we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances; but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express
no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion.



Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the business-type activities of the Gulf Consortium, as of September
30, 2016, and the respective changes in financial position, and, where applicable, cash flows
thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America.

Other Matters

Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the
Management's Discussion and Analysis on pages 3-6 be presented to supplement the basic
financial statements: Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is
required by the Gevernmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part
of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational,
economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required
supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the
information and .comparing the information for consistency with management's responses to our
inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the
basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the
information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an
opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated March
22, 2017, on our consideration of the Gulf-Consortium’s internal control over financial reporting and
on our tests of its compliance with<certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant
agreements and other matters. The purpose of that/report is to_describe the scope of our testing of
internal control over financial reporting and compliance and.the results of that testing, and not to
provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an
integral part of an audit performed in accordance .with Government> Auditing Standards in
considering Gulf Consortium’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

Fort Walton Beach, Florida
March 22, 2017



MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

As management of the Gulf Consortium (the Consortium), our discussion and analysis of the
Consortium's financial performance provides an overview of the Consortium's financial activities for
the fiscal year ended September 30, 2016. It should be read in conjunction with the Consortium's
financial statements which follow this section.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

e The Consortium's assets exceeded its liabilities by approximately $13 thousand (net
position) and represents a decrease of $2,500 from the prior year. The total net position of
the Consortium is.unrestricted.

e Operating revenues. consist of membership dues paid by each of the 23 participating
counties.and grant funds earned from the Oil Spill Impact Program. Total revenues earned
during.the year ended September 30, 2016 was approximately $418,000 of which 33% was
generated from membership dues and 66% from a federal grant award.

e Grant funded expenses of $278,613 consisted of approved pre-award costs of $170,953
and $107,660 of services approved under task orders to provide grant management
services and..compilation of the preliminary project list. Other operating expense of
$142,695 which were<paid from membership dues and prior year unrestricted resources
related to interim Consortium management, legal, audit, grant writing and meeting and travel
expenses.

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Gulf Consortium is a public entity created in October 2012 by Inter-local Agreement among
Florida's 23 Gulf Coast counties, from Escambia County in the western panhandle of Florida to
Monroe County on the southern tip of Florida and the United States.

Florida’s 23 Gulf Coast Counties formed the Consortium to meet requirements of the RESTORE
Act to develop a State Expenditure Plan for economic and environmental recovery of the Gulf coast
in Florida following the Deepwater Horizon oil spilli: The RESTORE Act. was passed by the
Congress on June 29, 2012 and signed into law on July 6, 2012 by the President.

The Consortium Board of Directors consists of one representative from each of the 23 counties. As
a public entity, the Consortium must meet all government transparency requirements in Florida,
including open public records and meetings, ethics, and state auditing obligations. Since its
inception, the Consortium has held several committee meetings to begin developing Florida’s State
Expenditure Plan.

To avoid duplication and to effectively utilize available resources, Florida’s local governments are
working in partnership with the State of Florida to fully recover the Gulf of Mexico following the
Deepwater Horizon disaster. To foster the development of the State Expenditure Plan, enhance
coordination, and to also ensure consistency with the goals and objectives of the Gulf Coast
Ecosystem Restoration Council’s Draft Initial Comprehensive Plan: Restoring the Gulf Coast's
Ecosystem and Economy, the Consortium has entered into a Memorandum of Understanding with
Florida Governor Rick Scott.



OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — CONTINUED

As a result of the nature of the funding the Gulf Consortium will receive, this function is considered
a business-type activity and is accounted for in an enterprise fund in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles for governments as established by the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board (GASB). As such, the required components of the Consortium's financial
statements are as follows:

* Management's Discussion and Analysis

+ Statement of Net Position

« Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Position
+ Statement of Cash Flows

* Notes to the Financial Statements

Required Supplementary.nformation, other than Management's Discussion and Analysis, is not
applicable to the Consortium's form of government and related activities.

The statement of net position and the statement of revenues, expenses, and changes in fund net
position report information about the Consortium using the accrual basis of accounting, similar to
most private-sector companies, as required for enterprise funds. The statement of net position
presents information on the Consortium's (a) assets and deferred outflows of resources and (b)
liabilities and deferred inflows of resources, with-the difference between the two reported as net
position. In the statement of revenues, expenses, and changes in net position, the current year's
revenues and expenses are taken into-account regardless of when cash is received or paid.

Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will result in cash
flows in future fiscal periods. The statement of cash flows provides information as to the sources
and uses of the Consortium's funds.



FINANCIAL ANALYSIS

Table 1 focuses on net position. The Consortium's net position was $13,239 as of September 30,
2016. Unrestricted net position is intended to cover Consortium on-going operating expenses.
During the year ended September 30, 2016 the Consortium budgeted to use $15,000 of previous
year net position to fund current year operating costs; however actual expenses only exceeded
operating revenue by $2,576. Legal, meeting and travel expenses were less than budgeted
amounts.

Table 2 focuses on the change in net position. Operating revenues consist of membership dues
paid by each of the 23 participating counties and grant funds earned from the Oil Spill Impact
Program. Grant funded expenses of $278,613 consisted of approved pre-award costs of $170,953
and $107,660 of services approved under task orders to provide grant management services and
compilation of the preliminary project list. Other operating expense of $142,695 which were paid
from membership dues and prior year unrestricted resources related to interim Consortium
management, legal, audit, grant writing and meeting and travel expenses.

Table 1
GULF CONSORTIUM
STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION
AS OF SEPTEMBER 30, 2016 AND 2015

Business-Type Activities

2016 2015

Current and other assets $ 314,125 $ 47,949

Total assets 314,125 47,949
Accounts payable 300,886 32,134

Total liabilities 300,886 32,134
Net position

Unrestricted 13,239 15,815

Total net position $ 13239 $ 15,815




Table 2
GULF CONSORTIUM
STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN NET POSITION
FOR THE YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2016 AND 2015

Business-Type Activities

2016 2015

REVENUES

Operating revenues $ 418,732 $ 140,071
EXPENSES

Operating expenses 421,308 132,550
CHANGE IN NET POSITION (2,576) 7,521
NET POSITION AT BEGINNING OFYEAR 15,815 8,294
NET POSITION AT END OF YEAR $ 13239 $ 15,815

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR'S BUDGETS AND RATES

The Consortium’s budget for fiscal year.2017 totals $1,663,180, which is $1.2 million higher than
the fiscal year 2016 approved budget due to increased grant funded activity. The Consortium has
budgeted $1,493,130 of federal grant revenue with grant expenses budgeted in the same amount.
Tasks expected to be started during the year ended September 30, 2017 include analysis of the
preliminary project list, perform’ gaps, -overlaps and opportunities analysis, develop project
evaluation criteria, project evaluation and refinement, project leveraging analysis and project
oversight including grant reporting and draw requests and other management tasks.

REQUESTS FOR INFORMATION

This financial report is designed to provide a narrative overview and analysis of the financial
activities of the Consortium for the fiscal year that ended September 30, 2016. Management's
Discussion and Analysis is designed to: (a) assist the reader in focusing on significant financial
issues, (b) provide an overview of the Consortium's financial activities, (c) identify changes in the
Consortium's financial position, and (d) identify individual fund issues or concerns of the Gulf
Consortium's financial activity. Questions concerning any of the information provided in the report or
requests for additional information should be addressed to the<Executive Director, Florida
Association of Counties, 100 South Monroe Street, Tallahassee, Florida 32301.



GULF CONSORTIUM
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
SEPTEMBER 30, 2016

ASSETS
Current assets
Cash
Restricted assets
Cash
Due from other governments

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities
Accounts payable
Accounts payable from restricted assets

TOTAL LIABILITIES

NET POSITION
Unrestricted

TOTAL NET POSITION

See notes to the financial statements.

7

$

35,512

170,953
107,660

314,125

22,273
278,613

300,886

13,239

$

13,239




GULF CONSORTIUM
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2016

OPERATING REVENUES
Planning grant
Membership dues
Other

Total operating revenues

OPERATING EXPENSES
Management
Legal and other professional fees
Meetings-and travel

Total operating expenses
CHANGE IN NET POSITION
NET POSITION AT BEGINNING OF YEAR
NET POSITION AT END OF YEAR

See notes to the financial statements.

8

278,613
140,050
69

418,732

60,000
337,703
23,605

421,308

(2,576)
15,815

$

13,239




GULF CONSORTIUM
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2016

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from members
Grant receipts
Payments to vendors for services
Receipts from other sources

Net cash provided by.operating activities
NET INCREASE IN CASH

CASH AT BEGINNING OF YEAR
CASH AT END OF YEAR

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME TO NET CASH
PROVIDED IN'OPERATINGACTIVITIES
Operating income
Adjustments to reconcile operating.income to net cash provided
by operating activities:
Decrease (increase) in assets:
Due from other governments
Increase (decrease) in liabilities:
Accounts payable
Accounts payable from restricted assets

Net cash provided by operating activities

CASH AT YEAR END CONSIST OF:
Current assets
Restricted assets

Total

See notes to the financial statements.

9

140,050

107,660

(89,263)
69

158,516

158,516
47,949

206,465

(2,576)

(107,660)

(9,861)
278,613

158,516

35,512
170,953

206,465




GULF CONSORTIUM
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2016

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND DESCRIPTION OF DISTRICT

Description of District

The Gulf Consortium (Consortium) was created in response to the United States Resources and
Ecosystems Sustainability, Tourist Opportunities, and Revived Economies of the Gulf Coast States
Act of 2012 (RESTORE Act). The RESTORE Act was established as a mechanism for providing
funding to the Gulf Coast region to restore ecosystems and rebuild local economies damaged by the
Deepwater Horizon Qil Spill which occurred on April 20, 2010. The RESTORE Act established the
Gulf Coast Ecosystem Restoration Council (the Restoration Council), an independent entity, which is
composed of certain federal officials and the Governors of Alabama, Florida, Mississippi, Louisiana,
and Texas. The RESTORE Act charges the Restoration Council with developing a comprehensive
plan for ecosystem restoration in the Gulf Coast region ("Council Comprehensive Plan") that
identifies “projects and programs aimed at restoring and protecting the natural resources and
ecosystems of the Gulf Coast Region. The projects and programs are to be funded from a portion of
the Gulf Coast Restoration Trust Fund. For Florida, the RESTORE Act, under 33 U.S.C. Chapter
1321(t)(3)(2012), requires a consortia of local political subdivisions to develop a State Expenditure
Plan, for which the RESTORE Act provides for Trust Fund expenditures that would fund projects,
programs and activities that will improve the ecosystems or economy of the Gulf Coast region that
meet the criteria specified in the RESTORE Act. Therefore, pursuant to Section 163.01, Florida
Statutes, by Interlocal Agreement among 23 Florida. Gulf Coast affected counties, the Gulf
Consortium was created on November 19, 2012 to: ) develop Florida's State Expenditure Plan, 2)
prepare and process proposals for funding-under the competitive program to be processed and
administered by the Restoration Council, and 3) act as a resource and advocate for Consortium
members.

On September 29, 2015, the Restoration Council published.its proposed rule on the RESTORE Act,
Spill Impact component state allocation formula: The Spill Impact component represents 30% of a
portion of civil fines and administrative penalties derived from the Clean Water Act and is expected
to be $1.32 hillion. The proposed allocation of the Spill Impact component for the State of Florida
was 18.36% of the total designated or approximately $242 million.

During the year ended September 30, 2015, the Gulf Consortium planning grant application to
prepare Florida’s State Expenditure Plan (FSEP) was submitted to the Restoration Council. As of
September 30, 2016 the Restoration Council approved $4.64 million of the planning grant
application and $278,613 has been earned. The performance period‘of the grant is August 23, 2014
to June 30, 2018. Of the total award $1,500,000 is earmarked for conceptual design and feasibility
studies. Such costs are considered allowable activities under the grant however the Restoration
Council is not requiring every project in the FSEP to meet specific percentages in the design level.
As such the $1,500,000 is reserved for those counties desiring to use planning grant funds for
project conceptual design concurrent with the development of the FSEP.

The Reporting Entity

The Consortium operates independently and is not subject to the oversight of any individual
governmental unit and therefore is not a component unit of another primary government.
Membership of the Consortium is limited to the counties that were impacted by the Deepwater
Horizon Oil Spill. As of September 30, 2016, the Consortium's membership consisted of the 23
Florida counties with frontage to the Gulf of Mexico. Each member appoints one Director of the
Consortium to act as a representative on its behalf.

10



GULF CONSORTIUM
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2016

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND DESCRIPTION OF DISTRICT -
CONTINUED

Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting

The Consortium is accounted for as an enterprise fund. Enterprise funds are used to account for
activities similar to those found in the private sector, where the determination of the excess of
revenues over expenses is necessary or useful to sound financial accountability. The accounting
records of the Consortium are organized on the basis of funds as prescribed by generally accepted
accounting principles (GAAP) for governments as established by the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board (GASB).

The accrual basis of accounting is used by the Consortium. Revenues are recognized when they are
earned and expenses when they are incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items. Operating
revenue and expenses generally result from providing services in connection with a proprietary
fund’s principal and ongoing operations. The Consortium was formed to develop a State Expenditure
Plan for economic and environmental recovery of the Gulf Coast in Florida following the Deepwater
Horizon oil spill. As such the Consortium considers its principal operating revenue to encompass
member dues and grant funding earned to prepare the State Expenditure Plan. Operating expenses
include legal, management and other day to day operational costs along with services performed by
consultants and other third parties related to.the preparation of the State Expenditure Plan.

Assets, Liabilities, and Net Position or Equity

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Consortium's cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash.on hand, demand deposits,
and short-term investments with original maturities ofthree months or less from the date of
acquisition.

Restricted Assets
Grant proceeds received but not disbursed and grant revenue receivable is restricted by the terms of
the planning grant agreement.

Net Position
When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the Consortium’s policy to
use restricted resources first and then unrestricted resources, as they are needed.

Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting
principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the
financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting
period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Subsequent Events

Subsequent events were evaluated through March 22, 2017, which is the date the financial
statements were available to be issued.

11



GULF CONSORTIUM
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2016

2. CASH

At September 30, 2016, cash consists of $206,465 with local commercial banks. The carrying
amount is equal to the bank balance.

Custodial Credit Risk

Custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of a failure of the counterparty, the government's
deposits may not be.returned to it or the organization may not be able to recover the value of its
investments that are in the possession of an outside party. Funds deposited in the local commercial
bank are insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) up to $250,000 per bank or
by collateral pursuant to the Public Depository Security Act of the State of Florida and are therefore
consideredfully insured or collateralized.

3. DUE FROM OTHER GOVERNMENTS

The Consortium receivable from other governments as of September 30, 2016, is $107,660 due
from the Gulf Coast Ecosystem Restoration-Council.

4. RELATED PARTIES

State of Florida

On June 12, 2013, the Consortium entered into a Memorandum‘of Understanding (MOU) with the
Governor of the State of Florida to collaborate for the benefit of the Gulf of Mexico and the State of
Florida with a focus on maximizing Florida's attainment of funds under the RESTORE Act to restore
the Gulf Coast resources and energize the economy recovery in the region. The MOU establishes
the process of coordinating with the Governor's office.on projects in the State Expenditure Plan for
Florida, which will be certified, if appropriate, by the Governor to the Guif Coast Ecosystem
Restoration Council for approval (see Note 1 for information on the Restoration Council). As part of
the MOU, the Governor shall appoint six individuals to provide input and guidance to the Consortium
on polices and criteria used to determine projects, activities, and programs<for consideration in the
State Expenditure Plan (the Plan). Additionally, the Consortium will consult with the State on the
development of the Plan and provide the Plan to the Governor for review prior to submission to the
Restoration Council.

Florida Association of Counties, Inc.

The Consortium entered into an agreement on October 19, 2012, with the Florida Association of
Counties, Inc. (FAC) for the FAC to serve as the Consortium’s interim manager. Services to be
provided include administration of Consortium operations as well as other administrative duties,
including the annual budget preparation. The term of the initial agreement was extended effective
October 2013. According to the amendment, the contract term shall be extended and continue until
sixty (60) days after the effective date of the Consortium’s hiring, engaging, or retaining a permanent
manager, unless an earlier expiration date is mutually agreed to in writing. FAC is to be
compensated $5,000 per month for these services. Management expenses for the year ended
September 30, 2016, totaled $60,000.

12



GULF CONSORTIUM
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2016

4. RELATED PARTIES — CONTINUED

Leon County, Florida

The Consortium has an interlocal agreement with Leon County, Florida to provide all necessary
personnel to develop a competitive procurement policy and procurement services as needed. The
level of effort related to these services were not significant during the year ended September 30,
2016, and as such no expenses or related in-kind revenue have been recorded.

5. CONCENTRATIONS

The Consortium’s revenue is generated from two sources, membership dues and federal grant funds
relating to the Gulf Coast Ecosystem.Restoration Council Oil Spill Impact Program. During the year
ended September 30, 2016 33%.of the Consortium’s revenue was generated from membership
dues and 66% from federal grant awards. The Consortium is fiscally dependent upon these revenue
sources.

6. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Grants

Amounts received or receivable from grant.agencies are subject to audit and adjustment by grantor
agencies, principally the federal government. Any disallowed claims, including amounts already
collected, may constitute a liability of the applicable funds. The amount, if any, of expenditures which
may be disallowed by the grantor cannot be determined at this time, although the Consortium
expects such amount, if any, to be immaterial.

7. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
The Board of Directors approved a recommendation from the Evaluation .Team for permanent

management services of the Consortium in February, 2017 based on a competitive bid process.
The contract will come before the Board for approval and execution in April, 2017.

13



A’ Wa rren 45 Eglin Parkway, N.E., Suite 301
‘ ‘ AVG rett Fort Walton Beach, FL 32548

CPAs AND ADVISORS 850.244.5121
warrenaverett.com

INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS’ REPORT ON AN EXAMINATION OF
COMPLIANCE REQUIREMENTS IN ACCORDANCE WITH CHAPTER
10.550, RULES OF THE AUDITOR GENERAL

To the Members of the‘Gulf Consortium

We have examined the Gulf Consortium’s (the Consortium) compliance with Florida Statute 218.415
in regards to the investments for the year ended September 30, 2016:

Management is responsible for the Consortium’s compliance with those requirements. Our
responsibility is to express.an opinion on the Consortium’s compliance based on our examination.

Our examination was conducted in accordance with attestation standards established by the
American Institute of Certified Public Accountants and, accordingly, included examining, on a test
basis, evidence about the Consortium’s compliance with those requirements and performing such
other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our
examination provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. Our examination does not provide a legal
determination on the Consortium’s compliance with specified requirements.

In our opinion, the Gulf Consortium complied, in all material respects, with Florida Statute 218.415 in
regards to the investments for the year ended September 30, 2016.

Fort Walton Beach, Florida
March 22, 2017

14



| Warren 45 Eglin Parkway, N.E., Suite 301
‘ AVG rett Fort Walton Beach, FL 32548

CPAs AND ADVISORS 850.244.5121
warrenaverett.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING
STANDARDS

To the Members of the Gulf Consortium

We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller. General of the United States, the financial statements of the
business-type activities of the Gulf Consortium, as of and for the year ended September 30, 2016,
and the related notes to'the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Gulf Consortium's
basic financial statements and.have issued our report thereon dated March 22, 2017.

Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit, we considered the Gulf Consortium's internal control over
financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose
of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Gulf Consortium's internal control. Accordingly, we do not
express an opinion on the effectiveness.of the Gulf Consortium's internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course/of performing their assigned functions, to prevent
or detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis.</A material weakness is a deficiency, or
combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a
material misstatement of the entity's financial statements will 'not be prevented, or detected and
corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies,
in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit
attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of
this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or, significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify
any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material
weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Gulf Consortium's financial statements
are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of
laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct
and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an
opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we
do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of honcompliance or
other matters that is required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

15



Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

Fort Walton Beach, Florida
March 22, 2017

16



A Warren 45 Eglin Parkway, N.E., Suite 301
‘ ‘ AVE rett Fort Walton Beach, FL 32548

CPAs AND ADVISORS 850.244.5121
warrenaverett.com

MANAGEMENT LETTER

To the Members of the Gulf Consortium

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited.the financial statements of the Gulf Consortium (the Consortium), as of and for the
fiscal year ended September 30, 2016, and the related notes to the financial statements, and have
issued our report thereon dated March 22, 2017.

Auditors’ Responsibility

We conducted our_audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards, issued_ by the Comptroller General of the United States and Chapter 10.550,
Rules of the Florida Auditor General.

Other Report

We have issued our Independent Auditors’ Report on'Internal Control over Financial Reporting and
on Compliance and Other Matters Based on.an Audit/of Financial Statements in Accordance with
Government Auditing Standards and.Independent Accountants’ Report on Examination of
Compliance Requirements in Accordance with. Chapter 10.550, Rules of the Auditor General.
Disclosures in this report, which is dated March 22, 2017, should be considered in conjunction with
this management letter.

Prior Audit Findings

Section 10.554(1)(i)1., Rules of the Auditor General, requires that we determine whether or not
corrective actions have been taken to address findings and recommendations made in the
preceding annual financial report. There were no recommendations made in.the preceding audit
report.

Official Title and Legal Authority

Section 10.554(1)(i)4., Rules of the Auditor General, requires that theqname or official title and legal
authority for the primary government and each component unit of the reporting entity be disclosed
in this management letter, unless disclosed in the notes to the financial statements. The official title
and legal authority for the Consortium has been disclosed in Note 1 to the financial statements. The
Consortium has no component units.

Financial Condition

Section 10.554(1)(i)5.a. and 10.556(7), Rules of the Auditor General, require that we apply
appropriate procedures and report the results of our determination as to whether or not the
Consortium has met one or more of the conditions described in Section 218.503(1). Florida
Statutes, and identification of the specific conditions met. In connection with our audit, we
determined that the Consortium did not meet any of the conditions described in Section 218.503(1),
Florida Statutes.

17



Pursuant to Sections 10.554(1)(i)5.c., and 10.556(8), Rules of the Auditor General, we applied
financial condition assessment procedures. It is management's responsibility to monitor the
Consortium's financial condition, and our financial condition assessment was based in part on
representations made by management and the review of financial information provided by same.

Annual Financial Report

Section 10.554(1)(i)5.b. and 10.556(7), Rules of the Auditor General, require that we apply
appropriate procedures and report the results of our determination as to whether the annual
financial report for the Consortium, for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2016, filed with the
Florida Department of Financial Services pursuant to Section 218.32(1)(a), Florida Statutes, is in
agreement with the annual financial audit report for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2016. In
connection with our audit, we determined that these two reports were in agreement.

Special District Component Units

Section 10.554(1)(i)5.d, Rules of the Auditor General, requires that we determine whether or not a
special district that is a component unit of a county, municipality, or special district, provided the
financial information necessary for proper reporting of the component unit, within the audited
financial statements of the county, municipality, or special district in accordance with Section
218.39(3)(b), Florida Statutes. The Consortium has no special districts that are component units.

Other Matters

Section 10.554(1)(i)2., Rules of Auditor General, requires that we address in the management letter
any recommendations to improve financial management. In connection with our audit, we did not
have any such recommendations.

Section 10.554(1)(i)3., Rules of Auditor_General, requires that we address noncompliance with
provisions of contracts or grant agreements, or. abuse, that have occurred, or are likely to have
occurred, that have an effect on the financial statements that is less than material but which
warrants the attention of those charged with governance. In.connection with our audit, we did not
have any such findings.

Purpose of this Letter
Our management letter is intended solely for the information and use of the Legislative Auditing
Committee, members of the Florida Senate and the Florida House of Representatives, the Florida
Auditor General, Federal and other granting agencies, members of the Gulf Consortium, and
applicable management, and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than
these specified parties.

We greatly appreciate the assistance and cooperation extended to us during our audit.

Fort Walton Beach, Florida
March 22, 2017

18



AGENDA ITEM 10



Gulf Consortium Board of Directors
April 6, 2017

Agenda Item 10
SEP Project Management Report: Status Report on Work Order #6 — Update on
Preliminary Project List

Background:

At its December 2, 2016 meeting the Gulf Consortium authorized the ESA
consultant team to proceed with Work Order #6 which encompasses Tasks 4 and
5 of the amended State Expenditure Plan development process. These tasks
include:

e Task 4 - Screen, Attribute and Map the Preliminary Project List; and
e Task 5 - Perform Gaps, Overlaps, and Opportunities Analysis.

The goals of these tasks are to begin refining the preliminary project list, assisting
the counties in better selecting priority projects and further defining those projects,
identifying specific project informational needs, filling gaps in project types and
geographic coverage across the Florida Gulf Coast, and promoting greater inter-
county cooperation and regionalism where feasible.

Status Update:

Since the February 8, 2017 Gulf Consortium meeting, the ESA consultant team has
conducted teleconferences and/or face to face meetings with all 23 counties, and
in some cases multiple meetings. The objectives of these communications are to:

e Assess any additions, deletions, or modifications to the counties proposed
projects;

e Confirm status of local BOCC approvals of county proposed projects;
e Begin evaluating specific project informational needs;

e Determining the need for county assistance and financial support to further
define and develop projects; and

e Screen and refine the preliminary project list.

In addition, on January 26, 2017 the ESA consultant team met with senior
representatives of the Florida Department of Environmental Protection and the
Florida representative on the Gulf Coast Restoration Council in Tallahassee. The
objectives of this meeting were to:

e Present a detailed county-by-county summary of the SEP Preliminary
Project List ; and



e Obtain early feedback on project consistency with Council and State goals
and objectives, as well as leveraging opportunities and guidance.

At the February 8, 2017 Gulf Consortium meeting Mr. Robison presented a detailed
summary of the FDEP meeting. In general, the feedback from FDEP on the
preliminary project list was very positive, and key FDEP staff indicated that there
will be numerous opportunities to leverage proposed County SEP projects with
other funding sources, primarily the various components of the NRDA settlement.

Since the February 8, 2017 Gulf Consortium meeting, the ESA consultant team has
determined that several counties are still in the process of determining priority
projects and that there will be significant changes to the preliminary project list
presented at the December 2, 2016 meeting. In general, it appears that the total
number of projects will be reduced, and there will be a greater emphasis on projects
involving oyster restoration and land acquisition for environmental and recreational
uses. The ESA Consultant Team will present a summary of the screened and
revised preliminary project list at the upcoming April 6, 2017 Gulf Consortium
meeting in Tallahassee. Upon approval by the Consortium, the ESA Consultant
Team will meet with Restoration Council in April 2017 to present the project list and
discuss informational needs.

This report was given to the Executive Committee at its meeting on March 30, 2017,
Mr. Robison presented a detailed summary of the status of Work Order # 6,
including conclusion of the follow-up meetings with the counties. Mr. Robison will
provide a detailed hand-out on the proposed project list which will be distributed
before the Board meeting.

Recommendation:
Information only.

Attachment:
None. A hand-out will be provided at the meeting and then posted on the
Consortium website.

Prepared by:

Doug Robison — SEP Project Manager
Environmental Science Associates
On: March 31, 2017




AGENDA ITEM 11



Gulf Consortium Board of Directors
April 6, 2017

Agenda Item 11
Approval of Work Order # 7: Complete Draft Project List and Conduct
Detailed Project Evaluation and Refinement

Background:
At its February 8, 2017 Gulf Consortium meeting, Mr. Robison presented a preview
of Work Order #7 which authorizes the Consultant to complete Tasks 6, 7 and 8 of
the amended State Expenditure Plan development process. These tasks include:
e Task 6 - Develop the Draft Project List and Spatial Database
e Task 7 - Develop Project Evaluation Criteria
e Task 8 — Conduct Detailed Project Evaluation and Refinement.

The goals of these tasks are to complete the Draft Project List, and conduct detailed
project evaluation, refinement, and definition of all county projects to be included in
the SEP.

With the completion of Task 6, Phase Il — Project Nomination — will be completed.
Tasks 7 and 8 are part of Phase Ill — Project Evaluation — of the revised SEP
development process. Completion of Work Order #7 will define the full list of
projects to be included in the SEP. These activities will set the stage for the detailed
leveraging analysis (Task 9) and the development of the SEP implementation and
project sequencing strategy (Task 10).

This proposed work order was previewed, in detail, at the Consortium’s Board
meeting on February 8, 2017 and, the Executive Committee, at its meeting of March
30, 2017, voted unanimously to recommend approval of Work Order 7.

Recommendation:
Approval of Work Order #7.

Attachment:
Proposed Work Order #7.

Prepared by:

Doug Robison — SEP Project Manager
Environmental Science Associates
On: March 31, 2017




Action Taken:

Motion to: , Made by:

Seconded by:

Approved ; Approved as amended ; Defeated



GULF CONSORTIUM AND ENVIRONMENTAL SCIENCE ASSOCIATES
AGREEMENT FOR CONSULTANT SERVICES
FOR STATE EXPENDITURE PLAN

-WORK ORDER #7-

Complete Draft Project List and
Conduct Detailed Project Evaluation and Refinement

WHEREAS, the Gulf Consortium (Consortium) and Environmental Science Associates
(Consultant) entered into an agreement for planning consulting services for the State Expenditure
Plan (Agreement);

WHEREAS, the Agreement requires written Work Orders to be issued by the Consortium
for work to be performed by the Consultant; and

WHEREAS, the Consortium desires the Consultant to screen, map and assess gaps and
overlaps in the preliminary list of projects, programs and activities to potentially be included in
the Florida State Expenditure Plan.

NOW, THEREFORE, the Parties agree to Work Order #7 as follows:

Background

This Work Order #7 authorizes the Consultant to complete Tasks 6, 7 and 8 of the amended State
Expenditure Plan development process. These tasks include:

e Task 6 - Develop the Draft Project List and Spatial Database
e Task 7 - Develop Project Evaluation Criteria
e Task 8 — Conduct Detailed Project Evaluation and Refinement.

The goals of these tasks are to complete the Draft Project List, and conduct detailed project
evaluation, refinement, and definition of all county projects to be included in the SEP. With the
completion of Task 6, Phase 1l — Project Nomination — will be completed. Tasks 7 and 8 are part
of Phase 11l — Project Evaluation — of the revised SEP development process. These activities will
set the stage for the detailed leveraging analysis (Task 9) and the development of the SEP
implementation and project sequencing strategy (Task 10).

Scope of Work

The scopes of work for these tasks, as authorized in the Planning Grant, are described below.
Task 6 - Develop the Draft Project List and Spatial Database

Based on input from the Consortium and the individual counties received in Tasks 4 and 5,
respectively, the ESA consultant team will revise and update the preliminary project list and

1



develop the draft project list and associated GIS spatial database. The draft project list will be
mapped, and summarized in a Technical Memorandum, and presented to the Consortium for
review and approval. Based on input from the Consortium, the draft project list and spatial
database may be further revised. Upon Consortium approval, the draft project list will represent
the universe of projects that will be taken into Phase 111 — Project Evaluation.

Phase 111 — Project Evaluation

Task 7 - Develop Project Evaluation Criteria

It should be noted that the purpose of project evaluation under the revised County-driven process
is not necessarily to eliminate projects, or to prioritize some projects over others, but rather to
improve and refine each project included in the final project list to maximize its impact, cost-
effectiveness, and grant readiness.

Based on the range of projects represented in the draft project list, the ESA consultant team will
develop detailed project evaluation criteria to comparatively assess each project. Detailed
evaluation criteria for environmental projects will focus on three key project attributes:

e Technical basis and justification: Evaluating the technical basis of proposed actions will
be based on best professional judgment. This attribute will be assessed in terms of whether
or not proposed projects are based on the best available science and/or engineering, as
required by the Council, and whether they have a clearly defined technical rationale and
justification (i.e., will the project address a demonstrated need).

e Feasibility: Evaluating the feasibility of proposed projects will essentially constitute a
“reality check” also based largely on best professional judgment. The feasibility attribute
will be assessed in terms of numerous factors including but not limited to: technical
efficacy (both science and engineering) workability, permitability, constructability, cost-
effectiveness, and public acceptance.

e Leveragability: Evaluating leveragability will involve an assessment of the ability for the
project to attract leveraged funded from a range of sources. Under this task, the primary
focus will be on funding streams associated with the Deepwater Horizon oil spill
settlements.

Separate criteria will be developed for economic projects. The recommended project evaluation
criteria will be summarized in a Technical Memorandum, and presented to the Consortium for
review and approval.

Task 8 - Conduct Project Evaluation and Refinement

To facilitate approval by the Council, all projects ultimately included in the FSEP should ideally
be technically justifiable, feasible, and affordable within the budget limitations of the Spill Impact

2



Component. Towards that end, the ESA consultant team will apply the approved evaluation
criteria to the draft project list to screen out those project concepts that cannot meet the criteria, or
modify them so that they do meet the criteria. Furthermore, projects that can attract other funds
through leveraging increase the overall value of the FSEP. Therefore, refining projects so that
they can meet criteria for various leveraged funding sources will also be addressed in this task. It
is anticipated that many project concepts submitted by the counties will have significant
information gaps, while other project submittals will be well-developed as conceptual or even final
designs with accompanying feasibility, engineering and environmental studies. To fairly and
objectively evaluate the various project concepts submitted by the counties, those that are lacking
in basic details with regard to such factors as technical justification, project boundaries, anticipated
benefits, technical approach, construction methods, cost estimates, etc. will need to be further
developed. Therefore, this task will involve the ESA consultant team working with individual
counties, as needed, to further refine their project concepts.

Note: Conceptual Design Funds

It should be noted that conceptual design and feasibility studies (up to 30% design) for individual
projects to be included in the FSEP are allowable activities for the use of planning grant funds.
Accordingly, a total of $1,500,000 has been reserved in the planning grant for these services if the
Consortium decides to accelerate design activities for high priority projects identified at this stage
of FSEP development; however, such services will need to be procured separately as the ESA
consultant team selection did not include engineering design.

Upon completion of project evaluation and refinement activities, a final project list will be
developed. This methods and findings of the project evaluation/refinement process, and the
recommended final project list will be summarized in a Technical Memorandum and presented to
the Consortium for review and approval. The final project list will serve as the basis for the
remaining tasks.

Deliverables
The deliverables for this Work Order #7 include the following:

e Task 6 Summary Technical Memorandum (as described above) and associated geospatial
database of the Draft Project List.

e Task 7 Summary Technical Memorandum (as described above).

e Task 8 Summary Technical Memorandum (as described above).

Schedule
Upon formal approval of this Work Order #7 by the Consortium at its April 6, 2017 meeting, the

above described scope of work and deliverables will be completed on or before October 31, 2017.
Compensation




Compensation of the Consultant for this and all future Work Orders shall be contingent upon the
availability of planning grant funds from the Restoration Council. As provided in the revised ESA
agreement and the Planning Grant, the fixed fee costs for Tasks 6, 7, and 8 are shown in the table

below.

Work Order #7
Task | Description Hours Dollars
@$205/hour*
Develop the Draft Project List and Spatial Database 568 $116,440
Develop Project Evaluation Criteria 480 $98,400
Conduct Project Evaluation and Refinement 1,480 $303,400
Totals 2,528 $518,320

* Blended rate used for cost estimating includes: overhead; profit; reimbursable expenses; and project management.

The Consultant shall be compensated on a fixed fee basis, and shall provide a final invoice upon
the completion of each task, and approval all associated deliverables, encompassed in this Work

Order. The total fixed fee for Work Order #7 shall not exceed $518,320.

WHERETO, the Parties have set their hands and seals effective the date whereon the last party

executes this Agreement.

GULF CONSORTIUM

By:

Date:

ENVIRONMENTAL SCIENCE

ASSOCIATES

By:

Title:

Date:

Vice President or designee




SECRETARY/TREASURER:

By:

Date:

Approved as to Form:
Gulf Consortium General Counsel

BY:

Lynn Hoshihura
Nabors, Giblin & Nickerson, P.A.
Gulf Consortium General Counsel



AGENDA ITEM 12



Gulf Consortium Board of Directors
April 6, 2017

Agenda Item 12
Preview of Work Order # 8. Conduct Project Leveraging Analysis and
Develop Project Sequencing & Implementation Strategy

Background:

At its February 8, 2017 Gulf Consortium meeting, Mr. Robison presented a preview
of Work Order #8 which authorizes the Consultant to complete Tasks 9 and 10 of
the amended State Expenditure Plan development process. These tasks include:

e Task 9 - Conduct Project Leveraging Analysis;
e Task 10 - Develop Project Sequencing & Implementation Strategy.

The goals of these tasks are to maximize leveraged funding sources for all SEP
projects, and to develop a project sequencing schedule and implementation
strategy that optimizes the 15-year payout such that each county is annually making
progress on their respective projects, while also ensuring that priority early action
projects can be adequately funded.

Completion of Tasks 9 and 10 will close out Phase Ill — Project Evaluation of the
SEP development process and set the stage for the development of the draft SEP
document. To accelerate the SEP development process the ESA Consultant Team
anticipates bringing Work Order #8 to the full Gulf Consortium for action at its May
17, 2017 meeting in Okaloosa County.

Recommendation:
Information only.

Attachment:
Draft Work Order #8.

Prepared by:

Doug Robison — SEP Project Manager
Environmental Science Associates
On: March 31, 2017




GULF CONSORTIUM AND ENVIRONMENTAL SCIENCE ASSOCIATES
AGREEMENT FOR CONSULTANT SERVICES
FOR STATE EXPENDITURE PLAN

-WORK ORDER #8-

Conduct Project Leveraging Analysis and
Develop Project Sequencing & Implementation Strategy

WHEREAS, the Gulf Consortium (Consortium) and‘Environmental Science Associates
(Consultant) entered into an agreement for planning consulting services for the State Expenditure
Plan (Agreement);

WHEREAS, the Agreement requires written Work Orders ta be issued by the Consortium
for work to be performed by the Consultant; and

WHEREAS, the Consortium desires the Consultant t0,screen, map and assess gaps and
overlaps in the preliminary list of projects, programs and.activities to potentially, be included in
the Florida State Expenditure Plan.

NOW, THEREFORE, the Parties agree to'WWork Order #8 as follows:

Background

Work Order #8 autherizes the Consultant to'complete Tasks 9 and 10 of the amended State
Expenditure Plan development process. These tasks include:

e Task 9 - Conduct Project Leveraging Analysis
e (Task 10 - DevelopProject Sequencing & Implementation Strategy.

The goals ofithese tasks are to.maximize leveraged funding sources for all SEP projects, and to
develop a project sequencing schedule and implementation strategy that optimizes the 15-year
payout such that.each county is.annually making progress on their respective projects, while also
ensuring that priority early action projects can be adequately funded. Completion of Tasks 9 and
10 will close out Phase Il — Project Evaluation of the SEP development process.

Scope of Work

The scopes of work for these tasks, as authorized in the Planning Grant, are described below.
Task 9 - Conduct Project Leveraging Analysis
The ESA consultant team will develop an Other Grant Sources Inventory document that addresses

potential leveraged funding sources applicable to the final suite of projects recommended in Task
8. This inventory will include a wide range of federal, state, private and NGO grant programs



(e.g., National Fish & Wildlife Foundation) that could potentially be used to leverage projects to
be included in the FSEP. This task will also involve close coordination with the Restoration
Council and FDEP with regard to the availability and applicability of leveraged funds from the
Council Selected Restoration Component (RESTORE Act Pot 2) and the Florida portion of the
Natural Resource Damages (NRD) settlement. The final suite of projects will be individually
linked to potential leveraging sources applicable to each, along with estimated dollar amounts.
Upon completion of this task, the final project list, and the leveraging potential for each, will be
summarized in a Technical Memorandum, and presented to the Consortium for review and
approval.

Task 10 - Develop Project Sequencing & ImplementationsStrategy

The approximate funding levels available to eachounty  from the Spill Impact Compact
component have been estimated for the BP settlement. Furthermare; based on current knowledge
of the settlement, funds will be paid out over afl5-year period, without the ability to use these
funds for bonding and debt payments. Finally, Council implementation, grants for all projects
included in the FSEP must be project-specific, and\be channeled througha single grant portal by
the FSEP implementing entity. Individual counties will not be'able to engage with the Council
independently with regard to implementation grant funds.‘To address these complexities, a project
sequencing strategy is necessary ‘to ‘expedite and optimize the distribution of Council
implementation grant funds.

It is anticipated that the finah,suite of projects ultimately included in the FSEP will vary
significantly with regard to theirrelative complexity and level of development and/or design. For
example, some projects may be ready to receive construction funds, while other projects may
require planning or design funds./ The ESA consultant team will develop a project sequencing
schedule that'optimizes the 15-year payoutisuch that each county is annually making progress on
their respective projects. In addition, this task will involve the development of an overall
implementation strategy that considers multiple alternatives for managing the accounting of Spill
Impact Camponent funds amongst the 23 counties over the 15-year payout schedule. A draft
Project Sequeneing & Implementation Strategy document will be prepared and presented to the
Consortium forreview, modification, and/or approval. The approved final suite of projects along
with the approved project sequencing and implementation strategy will serve as the basis for Phase
IV - FSEP Development.

Deliverables
The deliverables for this Work Order #7 include the following:

e Task 9 - Other Grant Sources Inventory document, Summary Technical Memorandum and
presentation to the Gulf Consortium.

e Task 10 - Project Sequencing & Implementation Strategy document, and summary
presentation to the Gulf Consortium.



Schedule

Upon formal approval of this Work Order #8 by the Consortium at its May, 2017 meeting, the
above described scope of work and deliverables will be completed on or before October 31, 2017.

Compensation

Compensation of the Consultant for this and all future Work Orders shall be contingent upon the
availability of planning grant funds from the Restoration Council. As provided in the revised ESA
agreement and the Planning Grant, the fixed fee costs for Tasks 9 and 10 are shown in the table
below.

Work Order #8
Task | Description Hours Dollars
@$205/hour*
9 Task 9 - Conduct Project Leveraging Analysis 082 $201,310
10 Develop Project Evaluation Criteria 960 $196,800
Totals 1,942 $398,110

* Blended rate used for cost estimating includes: overhiead;profit; reimbursable expenses; and project management.

The Consultant shall be compensated on\a fixed,fee basis, and,shall provide a final invoice upon
the completion of each task, and approval all associated deliverables, encompassed in this Work
Order. The total fixed feefor\WWork Order #8 shall not exceed $398;110.

WHERETO, the Parties have set their hands and seals effective the date whereon the last party
executes this Agreement.

GULF CONSORTIUM ENVIRONMENTAL SCIENCE
ASSOCIATES
By: By:
Vice President or designee
Date: Title:
Date:




SECRETARY/TREASURER:

By:

Date:

Approved as to Form:
Gulf Consortium General Counsel

BY:

Lynn Hoshihura
Nabors, Giblin & Nickerson, P.A.
Gulf Consortium General Counsel

N




AGENDA ITEM 13



Gulf Consortium Board of Directors
April 6, 2017

Agenda Item 13
Discussion of Potential Conceptual Design and Feasibility Study Work

Background:

At its February 8, 2017 Gulf Consortium meeting, the Board directed the ESA
Consultant Team to assess the need for accessing planning grant funds to conduct
“conceptual design and feasibility studies” to further define and cost projects to be
included in the SEP. Specifically, the Board requested that a cumulative cost
estimate be developed for conceptual design and feasibility studies needed to
complete the SEP. This cost estimate will to be used to determine the need to
procure professional engineering services to complete conceptual design and
feasibility studies concurrent with the development of the SEP.

Based on information received from the counties as of this writing, there does
appear to be a need to procure professional engineering services to access the
$1.5 million set aside in the existing Gulf Consortium planning grant. It is not clear
at this time if the planning grant will need to be amended to access additional funds
beyond this $1.5 million set-aside.

Mr. Robison will present an overview of the process used to determine the need for
conceptual design and feasibility study funds, and a summary of the cumulative
cost estimates as of this writing. It is anticipated that the need for these funds will
be further evaluated once the ESA Consultant Team meets with the Restoration
Council in April 2017.

Recommendation:
Information only.

Attachment:
None.

Prepared by:

Doug Robison — SEP Project Manager
Environmental Science Associates
On: March 30, 2017




AGENDA ITEM 14.1



Gulf Consortium Board of Directors
April 6, 2017

Agenda Item 14.1
Update on Planning Grant: Grant Management and Administration Report

Executive Summary:
Update on the status of the Planning Grant Application.

Most Recent Activity:

A Planning Grant in the amount of $4,640,675 was awarded to the Gulf Consortium
on June 23, 2016. The Gulf Consortium executed the grant agreement on June 28,
2016. Langton Consulting and Consortium staff have developed the financial control
systems and enrolled the Consortium in invoicing and payment systems and
commenced the drawdown and disbursement of federal grant funds. Three payment
requests totally $506,303.27 have been submitted and paid to date. The Gulf
Consortium’s first Financial Progress report for the period of 9/23/14-9/30/16 was
submitted on 10/30/16.

Full Background on Post Award Process/Procedure:

The Consortium submitted its fourth payment request in the amount of $14,373.43
through RAAMS on March 10, 2017. This payment was approved in RAAMS on
March 29 and submitted to ASAP the same day.

The Consortium’s next Financial Progress report is due April 30, 2017. Langton
Associates This report was given to the Executive Committee at its meeting on March
30, 2017.

Fiscal Impact:
Under Work Order #5, the Consortium agreed to pay ESA a $5,000 flat fee monthly
for grant management services (Task 15) provided by Langton Consulting.

Attachments:
None

Recommendation:
For information only.

Prepared by:

Lisa King

Langton Consulting
On: March 31, 2017




AGENDA ITEM 14.2



Gulf Consortium Board of Directors
April 6, 2017

Agenda Item 14.2
Planning Grant Update: Analysis of Work Orders Approved and
Planning Grant Award

Executive Summary:
Presentation of ESA Work Orders approved to date and a comparison of that
encumbered amount with respect to the Planning Grant Award.

Background:

On April 22, 2016, the Gulf Consortium Board of Directors approved a contract
amendment for the ESA Consulting Team to assist the Consortium in developing
Florida’s State Expenditure Plan for the Governor's submission to the Restoration
Council for the Spill Impact Component of the RESTORE Act. The ESA Team was
selected and hired after a comprehensive, competitively procured process. The
Contract between the Consortium and ESA is a not to exceed amount of
$2,722,780. The contract is performed on a work order basis.

The Consortium also hired Nabors, Giblin & Nickerson as its General Counsel, also
after a comprehensive, competitively procured process. The contract between the
Consortium and NGN is a not to exceed amount of $150,000 per year.

The Consortium’s Planning Grant Application was approved by the Restoration
Council on June 23, 2016 and the award contract was executed on June 28. The
grant award is in the amount of $4,640,675.

Analysis:
As of September 13, 2016, the Consortium has approved five work orders, totaling

$576,688, broken down as follows:

Task 1 (PSEP, Planning Grant App) $50,980
(approved 1/21/15) ($35,980 of which is funded by the grant)

Task 2 (Goal Setting Workshop) $21,560
(approved 3/25/15)

Task 3 (Public Involvement — Phase 1) $82,388
(approved 6/19/15)

Work Order 4(A) (Prelim Project List — Phase I) $92,660
(approved 6/28/16)

Work Order 4(B) (Preliminary Project List-Phase II)
(approved 9/13/16) $209,100




Work Order 5 (Grant Admin) $120,000

(approved 4/21/16) ($5,000 per month for 24 months)

Work Order 6 (Map Preliminary Project List & Perform Gaps Analysis)

(approved 12/2/16) $455,290
Total $1,031,978

As of September 13, 2016, the Consortium has approved one other contract to be
funded patrtially from the planning grant: Nabors, Giblin & Nickerson

NGN General Counsel Services
($90,000 of which can be funded by the grant, annually)

$180,000

Also, out of the grant award, the Consortium can pay for some of the actual costs it
incurs for its meetings: AV, IT, meeting space. These costs are incurred on a
meeting by meeting basis.

AV/IT Reimbursement
(in the first grant drawdown; incurred between 8/22/14 — 4/30/16)

$11,285

Accordingly, the following summarizes the grant budget as compared to Consortium-
approved and grant-fundable contracts:

Grant Award ESA Contract ESA Work NGN AV
Amount Orders Contract Reimbursement
Approved to from Grant
Date
$4,640,675 $2,722,780 $1,031,978 $180,000 $11,285
Options:

No action required.

Recommendation:
For information only.

Prepared by:

Ginger Delegal

Florida Association of Counties
Interim Manager

On: March 31, 2017




AGENDA ITEM 15



Gulf Consortium Board of Directors
April 6, 2017

Agenda Item 15
Update on Bonding Pot 3 RESTORE Funds

Executive Summary:
This agenda item provides an update on issues related to bonding Pot 3
RESTORE funds.

Background:

At its February 8, 2017 meeting the Gulf Consortium authorized the Interim
Manager to send a letter to the Florida delegation regarding the need for
Congressional authorization to allow bonding of Pot 3 funds, which will permit
projects to begin sooner and reduce grant administrative costs and time.

Attached are copies of the letters, dated February 17, 2017, which were sent to
the Florida congressional delegation.

Attachment:
Letters from the Gulf Consortium to the Florida congressional delegation.

Prepared by:

Lynn M. Hoshihara

Nabors, Giblin & Nickerson, P.A.
General Counsel

March 31, 2017




—

f,._«_' { " \“\H\

GUL—

CONSORTIUM

February 17, 2017

The Honcrabie Marco Rubio

U.S. Senate, Florida

284 Russell Senate Office Building
Washington, DC 20510

Re: RESTORE Act
Dear Senator Rubio:

Following the tragedy of the Deep Water Horizon Qil Spill in 2010, Congress took bold
action to ensure that the communities harmed by the environmental and economic impact
of the worst oil spill in U.S. history would be restored and made more resilient with the
passage of the RESTORE Act.

In Florida, the promise of the Act has aliowed those communities negatively impacted by
the oil spill to consider large scale infrastructure projects that could change their
economies for generations to come and allow them to invest in a way that before was
inconceivable because of the burden it would place on local taxpayers.

The RESTORE Act was passed years before a final penalty settlement with BP and other
responsible parties and in hindsight has created an unforeseen consequence that could
put a stop to large community investments — at a minimum for decades to come and —
quite possibly forever.

The settlement allows BP to pay its Clean Water Act fines over the course of the next 15
years in virtually equal installments. The primary tool that counties could use to eliminate
the delay of projects — tax exempt municipal bonding — has been deemed to be
unavailable under the RESTORE Act. See attached response from Treasury (specifically
response 30 on page 11). Therefore, we ask that you consider providing express
Congressional authorization to allow communities hit by this catastrophe to

1890 South Monrce Street
Tallahassee, FL. 32301



February 17, 2017
Page 2

bond the RESTORE dollars and aflow restoration projects to begin sooner rather than
decades later. In addition, by authorizing the bonding of projects tax dollars could be
saved and resources by reducing the complex federal grant administrative resources
required to track small pay outs over 15 years. Through a bond, communities would
have more immediate access to dollars for investment cutling out years of bureaucratic
tedium.

By approving the use of RESTORE Act dollars for bonding, the more than 87 million
residents and the millions of visitors along the Gulf of Mexico could soon see real
progress and know that, although the Deep Water Horizon incident happened seven
years ago, the government and BP have reached a settlement agreement and are now
working in concert expeditiously to improve the Gulf. Authorizing the acceleration of
funds through bonding presents a great opportunity to show the beneficial, efficient,
productive side of government.

Sincerely,

o s

Grover Robinson, Chairman
Gulf Consortium Board oi Directors

GR/el
Attachment

cc: Gulf Consortium Board of Direclors
Lynn Hoshihara, Esq., General Counsel, Gulf Consortium
Ginger Delegal, Inierim Manager, Gulf Consortium



GUL

CONSORTIUM

February 17, 2017

The Honorable Bill Nelson

U.S. Senate

716 Senate Hart Office Building
Washington, DC 20510

Re: RESTORE Act
Dear Senator Nelson:

Following the tragedy of the Deep Water Horizon OQil Spill in 2010, Congress took bold
action to ensure that the communities harmed by the environmental and economic impact
of the worst oil spill in U.S. history would be restored and made more resilient with the
passage of the RESTORE Act.

In Florida, the promise of the Act has allowed those communities negatively impacted by
the oil spill to consider large scale infrastructure projects that could change their
economies for generations to come and allow them to invest in a way that before was
inconceivable because of the burden it would place on local taxpayers.

The RESTORE Act was passed years before a final penalty settlement with BP and other
responsible parties and in hindsight has created an unforeseen consequence that could
put a stop to large community investments — at a minimum for decades to come and —
quite possibly forever.

The settlement allows BP to pay its Clean Water Act fines over the course of the next 15
years in virtually equal installments. The primary tool that counties could use to eliminate
the delay of projects — tax exempt municipal bonding — has been deemed to be
unavailable under the RESTORE Act. See attached response from Treasury (specifically
response 30 on page 11). Therefore, we ask that you consider providing express
Congressional authorization to allow communities hit by this catastrophe to

100 South Monroe Street
Tallahassee, FL. 32301



February 17, 2017
Page 2

bond the RESTORE dollars and ailow restoration projects to begin sooner rather than
decades later. In addition, by authorizing the bonding of projects tax dollars could be
saved and resources by reducing the complex federal grant administrative resources
required to track small pay outs over 15 years. Through a bond, communities would
have more immediate access to dollars for investment cutting out years of bureaucratic
tediurn.

By approving the use of RESTORE Act dollars for bonding, the more than 87 million
residents and the millions of visitors along the Gulf of Mexico could soon see real
progress and know that, although the Deep Water Horizon incident happened seven
years ago, the government and BP have reached a settlement agreement and are now
working in concert expeditiously to improve the Gulf. Authorizing the acceleration of
funds through bonding presents a great opportunity to show the beneficial, efficient,
productive side of government.

Sincerely,

S s

Grover Robinson, Chairman
Gulf Consortium Board of Directors

GR/el
Attachment

cc: Gulf Consortium Board of Directors
Lynn Hoshihara, Esq., General Counsel, Gulf Consortium
Ginger Delegal, Interim Manager, Gulf Consortium



February 17, 2017

The Honorable Gus Bilirakis

U.S. House of Representatives, Florida, 12 District
2112 Rayburn HOB

Washington, DC 20515

Re: RESTORE Act
Dear Representative Bilirakis:

Following the tragedy of the Deep Water Horizon Qil Spill in 2010, Congress took bold
action to ensure that the communities harmed by the environmental and economic impact
of the worst oil spill in U.S. history would be restored and made more resilient with the
passage of the RESTORE Act.

In Florida, the promise of the Act has allowed those communities negatively impacted by
the oil spill to consider large scale infrastructure projects that could change their
economies for generations to come and allow them to invest in a way that before was
inconceivable because of the burden it would place on local taxpayers.

The RESTORE Act was passed years before a final penalty settlement with BP and other
responsible parties and in hindsight has created an unforeseen consequence that could
put a stop to large community investments — at a minimum for decades to come and —
quite possibly forever.

The settlement allows BP to pay its Clean Water Act fines over the course of the next 15
years in virtually equal installments. The primary tool that counties could use to eliminate
the delay of projects — tax exempt municipal bonding — has been deemed to be
unavailable under the RESTORE Act. See attached response from Treasury (specifically
response 30 on page 11). Therefore, we ask that you consider providing express
Congressional authorization to allow communities hit by this catastrophe to

100 South Monroe Street
Tallahassee, FL 32301



February 17, 2017
Page 2

bond the RESTORE dollars and allow restoration projects to begin sooner rather than
decades later. In addition, by authorizing the bonding of projects tax dollars could be
saved and resources by reducing the complex federal grant administrative resources
required to track small pay outs over 15 years. Through a bond, communities would
have more immediate access to dollars for investment cutting out years of bureaucratic
tedium.

By approving the use of RESTORE Act dollars for bonding, the more than 87 million
residents and the millions of visitors afong the Guif of Mexico could soon see real
progress and know that, although the Deep Water Horizon incident happened seven
years ago, the government and BP have reached a settlement agreement and are now
working in concert expeditiously to improve the Guif. Authorizing the acceleration of
funds through bonding presents a great opportunity to show the beneficial, efficient,
productive side of government.

Sincerely,

S s

Grover Robinson, Chairman
Gulf Consortium Board of Directors

GR/eI
Attachment

cc:  Gulf Consortium Board of Direclors
Lynn Hoshihara, Esq., General Counsel, Gulf Consortium
Ginger Delegal, Interim Manager, Gulf Consortium



i

GUL—L

CONSORTIUM

February 17, 2017

The Honorable Ve Buchanan

U.S. House of Representatives, Florida, 16 District
2104 Rayburn HOB

Washington, DC 20515

Re: RESTORE Act
Dear Representative Buchanan:

Following the tragedy of the Deep Water Horizon Oil Spill in 2010, Congress took bold
action to ensure that the communities harmed by the environmental and economic impact
of the worst oil spill in U.S. history would be restored and made more resilient with the
passage of the RESTORE Act.

In Florida, the promise of the Act has allowed those communities negatively impacted by
the oil spill to consider large scale infrastructure projects that could change their
economies for generations to come and allow them to invest in a way that before was
inconceivable because of the burden it would place on local taxpayers.

The RESTORE Act was passed years before a final penalty settlement with BP and other
responsible parties and in hindsight has created an unforeseen consequence that could
put a stop to large community investments — at a minimum for decades to come and —
guite possibly forever.

The settlement allows BP to pay its Clean Water Act fines over the course of the next 15
years in virtually equal installments. The primary tool that counties could use to eliminate
the delay of projects — tax exempt municipal bonding — has been deemed to be
unavailable under the RESTORE Act. See attached response from Treasury (specifically
response 30 on page 11). Therefore, we ask that you consider providing express
Congressional authorization to allow communities hit by this catastrophe to

100 South Monroe Street
Tallahassee, FL 32301



February 17, 2017
Page 2

bond the RESTORE dollars and allow restoration projects to begin sooner rather than
decades later. In addition, by authorizing the bonding of projects tax dollars could be
saved and resources by reducing the complex federal grant administrative resources
required to track small pay outs over 15 years. Through a bond, communities would
have more immediate access to dollars for investment cutting out years of bureaucratic
tedium.

By approving the use of RESTORE Act dollars for bonding, the more than 87 million
residents and the millions of visitors along the Gulf of Mexico could soon see real
progress and know that, although the Deep Water Horizon incident happened seven
years ago, the government and BP have reached a settlement agreement and are now
working in concert expeditiously to improve the Gulf. Authorizing the acceleration of
funds through bonding presents a great opportunity to show the beneficial, efficient,
productive side of government.

Sincerely,

o s

Grover Robinson, Chairman
Gulf Consortium Board of Directors

GR/el
Attachment

cc:  Gulf Consortium Board of Directors
Lynn Hoshihara, Esq., General Counsel, Gulf Consortium
Ginger Delegal, Interim Manager, Guif Consortium



February 17, 2017

The Honorable Al Lawson

U.S. House of Representatives, Florida, 5™ District
1337 Longworth House Office Building
Washington, DC 20515

Re: RESTORE Act
Dear Representative Lawson:

Following the tragedy of the Deep Water Horizon Qil Spill in 2010, Congress took bold
action to ensure that the communities harmed by the environmental and economic impact
of the worst oil spill in U.S. history would be restored and made more resilient with the
passage of the RESTORE Act.

In Florida, the promise of the Act has aflowed those communities negatively impacted by
the oil spill to consider large scale infrastructure projects that could change their
economies for generations to come and allow them to invest in a way that before was
inconceivable because of the burden it would place on local taxpayers,

The RESTORE Act was passed years before a final penalty settlement with BP and other
responsible parties and in hindsight has created an unforeseen consequence that could
put a stop to large community investments — at 2 minimum for decades to come and —
quite possibly forever.

The settlement allows BP to pay its Clean Water Act fines over the course of the next 15
years in virtually equal installments. The primary tool that counties could use to eliminate
the delay of projects — tax exempt municipal bonding — has been deemed to be
unavailable under the RESTORE Act. See attached response from Treasury (specifically
response 30 on page 11). Therefore, we ask that you consider providing express
Congressional authorization to allow communities hit by this catastrophe to

100 South Monroe Street
Tallahassee, FL. 32301



February 17, 2017
Page 2

bond the RESTORE doliars and allow restoration projects to begin sooner rather than
decades later. In addition, by authorizing the bonding of projects tax dollars could be
saved and resources by reducing the complex federal grant administrative resources
required to track small pay outs over 15 years. Through a bond, communities would
have more immediate access to dollars for investment cutting out years of bureaucratic
tedium.

By approving the use of RESTORE Act dollars for bonding, the more than 87 million
residents and the millions of visitors along the Gulf of Mexico could soon see real
progress and know that, although the Deep Water Horizon incident happened seven
years ago, the government and BP have reached a settlement agreement and are now
working in concert expeditiously to improve the Gulf. Authorizing the acceleration of
funds through bonding presents a great opportunity to show the beneficial, efficient,
productive side of government.

Sincerely,

o s

Grover Robinson, Chairman
Gulf Consortium Board of Directors

GR/el
Attachment

cc:  Gulf Consortium Board of Directors
Lynn Hoshihara, Esq., General Counsel, Gulf Consortium
Ginger Delegal, Interim Manager, Gulf Consortium



CONSORTIUM

February 17, 2017

The Honorable Kathy Castor

U.S. House of Representatives, Florida, 14t District
2052 Rayburn House Office Building

Washington, D.C. 20515

Re: RESTORE Act
Dear Representative Castor:

Following the tragedy of the Deep Water Horizon Qil Spill in 2010, Congress took bold
action to ensure that the communities harmed by the environmental and economic impact
of the worst oil spill in U.S. history would be restored and made more resilient with the
passage of the RESTORE Act.

In Florida, the promise of the Act has allowed those communities negatively impacted by
the oil spill to consider large scale infrastructure projects that could change their
economies for generations to come and allow them to invest in a way that before was
inconceivable because of the burden it would place on local taxpayers.

The RESTORE Act was passed years before a final penalty settlement with BP and other
responsible parties and in hindsight has created an unforeseen consequence that couid
put a stop to large community investments — at a minimum for decades to come and —
quite possibly forever.

The settlement allows BP to pay its Clean Water Act fines over the course of the next 15
years in virtually equal installments. The primary tool that counties could use to eliminate
the delay of projects — tax exempt municipal bonding — has been deemed to be
unavailable under the RESTORE Act. See attached response from Treasury (specifically
response 30 on page 11). Therefore, we ask that you consider providing express
Congressional authorization to allow communities hit by this catastrophe to

100 South Monroe Street
Tallahassee, FL 32301



February 17, 2017
Page 2

bond the RESTORE doliars and allow restoration projects to begin sooner rather than
decades later. In addition, by authorizing the bonding of projects tax dollars could be
saved and resources by reducing the complex federal grant administrative resources
required to track small pay outs over 15 years. Through a bond, communities would
have more immediate access to dollars for investment cutting out years of bureaucratic
tedium.

By approving the use of RESTORE Act dollars for bonding, the more than 87 million
residents and the millions of visitors along the Guif of Mexico could soon see real
progress and know that, although the Deep Water Horizon incident happened seven
years ago, the government and BP have reached a settlement agreement and are now
working in concert expeditiously to improve the Gulf. Authorizing the acceleration of
funds through bonding presents a great opportunity to show the beneficial, efficient,
productive side of government.

Sincerely,

o Qs

Grover Robinson, Chairman
Gulif Consortium Board of Directors

GR/el
Attachment

cc:  Gulf Consortium Board of Direclors
Lynn Hoshihara, Esq., General Counsel, Gulf Consortium
Ginger Delegal, Interim Manager, Gulf Consortium



CONSORTIUM

February 17, 2017

The Honorable Francis Rooney

U.S. House of Representatives, Florida, 19t District
120 Cannon HOB

Washington, DC 20515

Re: RESTORE Act
Dear Representative Rooney:

Following the tragedy of the Deep Water Horizon Oil Spill in 2010, Congress took bold
action to ensure that the communities harmed by the environmental and economic impact
of the worst oil spill in U.S. history would be restored and made more resilient with the
passage of the RESTORE Act.

In Florida, the promise of the Act has allowed those communities negatively impacted by
the oil spill to consider large scale infrastructure projects that could change their
economies for generations to come and allow them to invest in a way that before was
inconceivable because of the burden it would place on local taxpayers.

The RESTORE Act was passed years before a final penalty settlement with BP and other
responsible parties and in hindsight has created an unforeseen consequence that could
put a stop to large community investments — at a minimum for decades to come and -
quite possibly forever.

The settiement allows BP to pay its Clean Water Act fines over the course of the next 15
years in virtually equal installments. The primary tool that counties could use to eliminate
the delay of projects — tax exempt municipal bonding — has been deemed to be
unavailable under the RESTORE Act. See attached response from Treasury (specifically
response 30 on page 11). Therefore, we ask that you consider providing express
Congressional authorization to allow communities hit by this catastrophe to

100 South Monroe Street
Tallahassee, FL. 32301



February 17, 2017
Page 2

bond the RESTORE doliars and allow restoration projects to begin sooner rather than
decades later. In addition, by authorizing the bonding of projects tax dollars could be
saved and resources by reducing the complex federal grant administrative resources
required to track small pay outs over 15 years. Through a bond, communities would
have more immediate access to doliars for investment cutting out years of bureaucratic
tedium.

By approving the use of RESTORE Act dollars for bonding, the more than 87 million
residents and the millions of visitors along the Gulf of Mexico could soon see real
progress and know that, although the Deep Water Horizon incident happened seven
years ago, the government and BP have reached a settlement agreement and are now
working in concert expeditiously to improve the Gulf. Authorizing the acceleration of
funds through bonding presents a great opportunity to show the beneficial, efficient,
productive side of government.

Sincerely,

o s

Grover Robinson, Chairman
Gulf Consortium Board of Directors

GR/el
Attachment

cc: Gulf Consortium Board of Directors
Lynn Hoshihara, Esq., General Counsel, Gulf Consortium
Ginger Delegal, Interim Manager, Guif Consortium



GUL

CONSORTIUM

February 17, 2017

The Honorable Carlos Curbelo

U. S. House of Representatives, Florida, 26t District
1404 Longworth H.O.B.

Washington, DC 205615

Re: RESTORE Act
Dear Representative Curbelo:

Following the tragedy of the Deep Water Horizon Qil Spill in 2010, Congress took boid
action to ensure that the communities harmed by the environmental and economic impact
of the worst oil spill in U.S. history would be restored and made more resilient with the
passage of the RESTORE Act.

in Florida, the promise of the Act has ailowed those communities negatively impacted by
the oil spill to consider large scale infrastructure projects that could change their
economies for generations to come and allow them to invest in a way that before was
inconceivable because of the burden it would place on local taxpayers.

The RESTORE Act was passed years before a final penalty settlement with BP and other
responsible parties and in hindsight has created an unforeseen consequence that could
put a stop to large community investments — at a minimum for decades to come and —
quite possibly forever.

The settlement allows BP to pay its Clean Water Act fines over the course of the next 15
years in virtually equal installments. The primary tool that counties could use to eliminate
the delay of projects — tax exempt municipal bonding — has been deemed to be
unavailable under the RESTORE Act. See attached response from Treasury (specifically
response 30 on page 11). Therefore, we ask that you consider providing express
Congressional authorization to allow communities hit by this catastrophe to

100 South Monroe Street
Tallahassee, FL. 32301



February 17, 2017
Page 2

bond the RESTORE dollars and allow restoration projects to begin sooner rather than
decades later. In addition, by authorizing the bonding of projects tax dollars could be
saved and resources by reducing the complex federal grant administrative resources
required to track small pay outs over 15 years. Through a bond, communities would
have more immediate access to dollars for investment cutting out years of bureaucratic
tedium.

By approving the use of RESTORE Act dollars for bonding, the more than 87 million
residents and the millions of visitors along the Gulf of Mexico could soon see real
progress and know that, although the Deep Water Horizon incident happened seven
years ago, the government and BP have reached a settlement agreement and are now
working in concert expeditiously to improve the Gulf. Authorizing the acceleration of
funds through bonding presents a great opportunity to show the beneficial, efficient,
productive side of government.

Sincerely,

o Qs

Grover Robinson, Chairman
Gulf Consoriium Board of Directors

GR/el
Attachment

cc:  Gulf Consortium Board of Directors
Lynn Hoshihara, Esq., General Counsel, Gulf Consortium
Ginger Delegal, Interim Manager, Guif Consortium



GUL

CONSORTIUM

February 17, 2017

The Honorable John Rutherford

U.S. House of Representatives, Florida, 4™ District
230 Cannon House Office Building

Washington, DC 20515

Re: RESTORE Act
Dear Representative Rutherford:

Following the tragedy of the Deep Water Horizon Oil Spill in 2010, Congress took bold
action to ensure that the communities harmed by the environmental and economic impact
of the worst oil spill in U.S. history would be restored and made more resilient with the
passage of the RESTORE Act.

In Florida, the promise of the Act has allowed those communities negatively impacted by
the oil spill to consider large scale infrastructure projects that could change their
economies for generations to come and allow them to invest in a way that before was
inconceivable because of the burden it would place on local taxpayers.

The RESTORE Act was passed years before a final penalty settlement with BP and other
responsible parties and in hindsight has created an unforeseen consequence that could
put a stop to targe community investments — at a minimum for decades to come and —
quite possibly forever.

The settlement allows BP to pay its Clean Water Act fines over the course of the next 15
years in virtually equal installments. The primary tool that counties could use to eliminate
the delay of projects — tax exempt municipal bonding — has been deemed to be
unavailable under the RESTORE Act. See attached response from Treasury (specifically
response 30 on page 11). Therefore, we ask that you consider providing express
Congressional authorization to allow communities hit by this catastrophe to

100 South Monroe Street
Tallahassee, FL 32301



February 17, 2017
Page 2

bond the RESTORE doliars and allow restoration projects to begin sooner rather than
decades later. In addition, by authorizing the bonding of projects tax dollars could be
saved and resources by reducing the complex federal grant administrative resources
required to track small pay outs over 15 years. Through a bond, communities would
have more immediate access to dollars for investment cutting out years of bureaucratic
tedium.

By approving the use of RESTORE Act dollars for bonding, the more than 87 million
residents and the millions of visitors along the Gulf of Mexico could soon see real
progress and know that, although the Deep Water Horizon incident happened seven
years ago, the government and BP have reached a settlement agreement and are now
working in concert expeditiously to improve the Gulf. Authorizing the acceleration of
funds through bonding presents a great opportunity to show the beneficial, efficient,
productive side of government.

Sincerely,

o s

Grover Robinson, Chairman
Gulf Consortium Board of Directors

GR/e!
Attachment

cc:  Gulf Consortium Board of Directors
Lynn Hoshihara, Esg., General Counsel, Guif Consortium
Ginger Delegal, Interim Manager, Gulf Consortium



S —

F i "\\.‘\i\x

GULF\

CONSORTIUM

February 17, 2017

The Honorable Ron DeSantis

U.S. House of Representatives, Florida, 6% District
1524 Longworth House Office Building
Washington, DC 20515

Re: RESTORE Act
Dear Representative DeSantis:

Following the tragedy of the Deep Water Horizon Oil Spill in 2010, Congress took bold
action to ensure that the communities harmed by the environmental and economic impact
of the worst oil spill in U.S. history would be restored and made more resilient with the
passage of the RESTORE Act.

In Florida, the promise of the Act has allowed those communities negatively impacted by
the oil spill to consider large scale infrastructure projects that could change their
economies for generations to come and allow them to invest in a way that before was
inconceivable because of the burden it would place on local taxpayers.

The RESTORE Act was passed years before a final penalty settiement with BP and other
responsible parties and in hindsight has created an unforeseen consequence that could
put a stop to large community investments — at a minimum for decades to come and —
quite possibly forever.

The settlement allows BP to pay its Clean Water Act fines over the course of the next 15
years in virtually equal installments. The primary tool that counties could use to eliminate
the delay of projects — tax exempt municipal bonding — has been deemed to be
unavailable under the RESTORE Act. See attached response from Treasury (specifically
response 30 on page 11). Therefore, we ask that you consider providing express
Congressional authorization to allow communities hit by this catastrophe to

100 South Monroe Street
Tallahassee, FL 32301



February 17, 2017
Page 2

bond the RESTORE dollars and allow restoration projects to begin sooner rather than
decades later. In addition, by authorizing the bonding of projects tax dollars could be
saved and resources by reducing the complex federal grant administrative resources
required to track small pay outs over 15 years. Through a bond, communities would
have more immediate access to dollars for investment culting out years of bureaucratic
tedium.

By approving the use of RESTORE Act dollars for bonding, the more than 87 million
residents and the millions of visitors along the Gulf of Mexico could soon see real
progress and know that, although the Deep Water Horizon incident happened seven
years ago, the government and BP have reached a settlement agreement and are now
working in concert expeditiously to improve the Gulf. Authorizing the acceleration of
funds through bonding presents a great opportunity to show the beneficial, efficient,
productive side of government.

Sincerely,

o s

Grover Robinson, Chairman
Guif Consortium Board of Directors

GR/el
Attachment

cc.  Guli Consortium Board of Directors
Lynn Hoshihara, Esq., General Counsel, Gulf Consortium
Ginger Delegal, Interim Manager, Gulf Consortium



CONSORTIUM

February 17, 2017

The Honcrable Ted Deutch

U.S. House of Representatives, Florida, 22" District
2447 Raybum Building

Washington, DC 20515

Re: RESTORE Act
Dear Representative Deutch:

Following the tragedy of the Deep Water Horizon Qil Spill in 2010, Congress took boid
action to ensure that the communities harmed by the environmental and economic impact
of the worst oil spill in U.S. history would be restored and made more resilient with the
passage of the RESTORE Act.

In Florida, the promise of the Act has allowed those communities negatively impacted by
the oil spill to consider large scale infrastructure projects that could change their
economies for generations to come and allow them to invest in a way that before was
inconceivable because of the burden it would place on local taxpayers.

The RESTORE Act was passed years before a final penalty settlement with BP and other
responsible parties and in hindsight has created an unforeseen consequence that could
put a stop to large community investments — at a minimum for decades to come and -
quite possibly forever.

The settlement allows BP to pay its Clean Water Act fines over the course of the next 15
years in virtually equal installments. The primary tool that counties could use to eliminate
the delay of projects — tax exempt municipal bonding — has been deemed to be
unavailable under the RESTORE Act. See attached response from Treasury (specifically
response 30 on page 11). Therefore, we ask that you consider providing express
Congressional authorization to aliow communities hit by this catastrophe to

100 South Monroe Street
Tallahassee, FL. 32301



February 17, 2017
Page 2

bond the RESTORE dollars and allow restoration projects to begin sooner rather than
decades later. In addition, by authorizing the bonding of projects tax dollars could be
saved and resources by reducing the complex federal grant administrative resources
required to track small pay outs over 15 years. Through a bond, communities would
have more immediate access to dollars for investment cutting out years of bureaucratic
tedium.

By approving the use of RESTORE Act dollars for bonding, the more than 87 million
residents and the millions of visitors along the Guif of Mexico could scon see real
progress and know that, although the Deep Water Horizon incident happened seven
years ago, the government and BP have reached a seltlement agreement and are now
working in concert expeditiously to improve the Gulf. Authorizing the acceleration of
funds through bonding presents a great opportunity to show the beneficial, efficient,
productive side of government.

Sincerely,

S s

Grover Robinson, Chairman
Gulf Consortium Board of Directors

GR/el
Attachment

cc.  Gulf Consortium Board of Directors
Lynn Hoshihara, Esq., General Counsel, Gulf Consortium
Ginger Delegal, Interim Manager, Guif Consortium



GUL

CONSORTIUM

February 17, 2017

The Honorable Lois Frankel

U. S. House of Representatives, Fiorida, 215t District
1037 Longworth House Office Building

Washington, DC 20515

Re: RESTORE Act
Dear Representative Frankel:

Following the tragedy of the Deep Water Horizon Qil Spill in 2010, Congress took bold
action to ensure that the communities harmed by the environmental and economic impact
of the worst oil spill in U.S. history would be restored and made more resilient with the
passage of the RESTORE Act.

In Florida, the promise of the Act has allowed those communities negatively impacted by
the oil spill to consider large scale infrastructure projects that could change their
economies for generations to come and allow them to invest in a way that before was
inconceivable because of the burden it would place on local taxpayers.

The RESTORE Act was passed years before a final penalty settlement with BP and other
responsible parties and in hindsight has created an unforeseen consequence that could
put a stop to large community investments — at a minimum for decades to come and —
quite possibly forever.

The settlement allows BP to pay its Clean Water Act fines over the course of the next 15
years in virtually equal installments. The primary tool that counties could use to eliminate
the delay of projects — tax exempt municipal bonding — has been deemed to be
unavailable under the RESTORE Act. See attached response from Treasury (specifically
response 30 on page 11). Therefore, we ask that you consider providing express
Congressional authorization to allow communities hit by this catastrophe to

100 South Monroe Street
Tallahassee, FL. 32301



February 17, 2017
Page 2

bond the RESTORE dollars and aliow restoration projects to begin sooner rather than
decades later. In addition, by authorizing the bonding of projects tax dollars could be
saved and resources by reducing the complex federal grant administrative resources
required to track small pay outs over 15 years. Through a bond, communities would
have more immediate access to dollars for investment cutting out years of bureaucratic
tedium.

By approving the use of RESTORE Act dollars for bonding, the more than 87 million
residents and the millions of visitors along the Gulf of Mexico could soon see real
progress and know that, although the Deep Water Horizon incident happened seven
years ago, the government and BP have reached a settlement agreement and are now
working in concert expeditiously to improve the Gulf. Authorizing the acceleration of
funds through bonding presents a great opportunity to show the beneficial, efficient,
productive side of government.

Sincerely,

4 s

Grover Robinson, Chairman
Gulf Consortium Board of Directors

GR/el
Attachment

cc.  Gulf Consortium Board of Directors
Lynn Hoshihara, Esq., General Counsel, Gulf Consortium
Ginger Delegal, Interim Manager, Gulf Consortium



CONSORTIUM

February 17, 2017

he Honorable Mario Diaz-Balart

U.S. House of Representatives, Florida, 25% District
440 Cannon House Office Building

Washington, DC 20515

Re: RESTORE Act
Dear Representative Diaz-Balart:

Following the tragedy of the Deep Water Horizon Oil Spill in 2010, Congress took bold
action to ensure that the communities harmed by the environmental and economic impact
of the worst oil spill in U.S. history would be restored and made more resilient with the
passage of the RESTORE Act.

In Florida, the promise of the Act has allowed those communities negatively impacted by
the oil spill to consider large scale infrastructure projects that could change their
economies for generations to come and allow them to invest in a way that before was
inconceivable because of the burden it would place on local taxpayers.

The RESTORE Act was passed years before a final penalty settlement with BP and other
responsible parties and in hindsight has created an unforeseen consequence that could
put a stop to large community investments — at a minimum for decades to come and —
quite possibly forever.

The settlement allows BP to pay its Clean Water Act fines over the course of the next 15
years in virtually equal installments. The primary tool that counties could use to eliminate
the defay of projects — tax exempt municipal bonding — has been deemed to be
unavailable under the RESTORE Act. See attached response from Treasury (specifically
response 30 on page 11). Therefore, we ask that you consider providing express
Congressional authorization to allow communities hit by this catastrophe fo

100 South Monroe Street
Tallahassee, FL 32301



February 17, 2017
Page 2

bond the RESTORE dollars and allow restoration projects to begin sooner rather than
decades later. In addition, by authorizing the bonding of projects tax dollars could be
saved and resources by reducing the complex federal grant administrative resources
required to track small pay outs over 15 years. Through a bond, communities would
have more immediate access to dollars for investment cutting out years of bureaucratic
tedium.

By approving the use of RESTORE Act dollars for bonding, the more than 87 million
residents and the millions of visitors along the Gulf of Mexico could soon see real
progress and know that, although the Deep Water Horizon incident happened seven
years ago, the government and BP have reached a settlement agreement and are now
working in concert expeditiously to improve the Gulf. Authorizing the acceleration of
funds through bonding presents a great opportunity to show the beneficial, efficient,
productive side of government.

Sincerely,

o Yl

Grover Robinson, Chairman
Gulf Consortium Board of Directors

GR/el
Attachment

cc.  Gulf Consortium Board of Directors
Lynn Hoshihara, Esq., General Counsel, Gulf Consortium
Ginger Delegal, inierim Manager, Gulf Consortium



GUL

CONSORTIUM

February 17, 2017

The Honorable Neal Dunn

U. 8. House of Representatives, Florida, 2" District
423 Cannon House Office Building

Washington, DC 20515

Re: RESTORE Act
Dear Representative Dunn:

Following the tragedy of the Deep Water Horizon Oil Spill in 2010, Congress took bold
action to ensure that the communities harmed by the environmental and economic impact
of the worst oil spill in U.S. history would be restored and made more resilient with the
passage of the RESTORE Act.

In Florida, the promise of the Act has allowed those communities negatively impacted by
the oil spill to consider large scale infrastructure projects that could change their
economies for generations to come and allow them to invest in a way that before was
inconceivable because of the burden it would place on local taxpayers.

The RESTORE Act was passed years before a final penalty settlement with BP and other
responsible parties and in hindsight has created an unforeseen consequence that could
put a stop to large community investments — at a minimum for decades to come and —
quite possibly forever.

The settlement allows BP to pay its Clean Water Act fines over the course of the next 15
years in virtually equal installments. The primary tool that counties could use to eliminate
the delay of projects — tax exempt municipal bonding — has been deemed to be
unavailable under the RESTORE Act. See attached response from Treasury (specifically
response 30 on page 11). Therefore, we ask that you consider providing express
Congressional authorization to allow communities hit by this catastrophe to

100 South Monroe Street
Tallahassee, FL. 32301



February 17, 2017
Page 2

bond the RESTORE dollars and allow restoration projects to begin sooner rather than
decades later. In addition, by authorizing the bonding of projects tax dollars could be
saved and resources by reducing the complex federal grant administrative resources
required to track small pay outs over 15 years. Through a bond, communities would
have more immediate access to dollars for investment cutting out years of bureaucratic
tedium.

By approving the use of RESTORE Act dollars for bonding, the more than 87 million
residents and the millions of visitors along the Gulf of Mexico could soon see real
progress and know that, although the Deep Water Horizon incident happened seven
years ago, the government and BP have reached a seitiement agreement and are now
working in concert expeditiously to improve the Guif. Authorizing the acceleration of
funds through bonding presents a great opportunity to show the beneficial, efficient,
productive side of government.

Sincerely,

S s

Grover Robinson, Chairman
Gulf Consortium Board of Directors

GR/el
Attachment

cc:  Gulf Consortium Board of Direclors
Lynn Hoshihara, Esq., General Counsel, Gulf Consortium
Ginger Delegal, Interim Manager, Gulf Consortium



GUL

CONSORTIUM

February 17, 2017

The Honorable Darren Soto

U. S. House of Representatives, Florida, 9% District
1429 Longworth House Office Building
Washington, DC 20515

Re: RESTORE Act
Dear Representative Soto:

Following the tragedy of the Deep Water Horizon Oil Spill in 2010, Congress took bold
action to ensure that the communities harmed by the environmental and economic impact
of the worst oil spill in U.S. history would be restored and made more resilient with the
passage of the RESTORE Act.

In Florida, the promise of the Act has allowed those communities negatively impacted by
the oil spill to consider large scale infrastructure projects that could change their
economies for generations to come and allow them to invest in a way that before was
inconceivable because of the burden it would place on local taxpayers.

The RESTORE Act was passed years before a final penalty settlement with BP and other
responsible parties and in hindsight has created an unforeseen consequence that could
put a stop to large community investments — at a minimum for decades to come and —
quite possibly forever.

The settlement allows BP to pay its Clean Water Act fines over the course of the next 15
years in virtually equal installments. The primary tool that counties could use to eliminate
the delay of projects — tax exempt municipal bonding — has been deemed to be
unavailable under the RESTORE Act. See attached response from Treasury (specifically
response 30 on page 11). Therefore, we ask that you.consider providing express
Congressional authorization to allow communities hit by this catastrophe to

100 South Monroe Street
Tallahassee, FL. 32301



February 17, 2017
Page 2

bond the RESTORE doliars and allow restoration projects to begin sooner rather than
decades later. In addition, by authorizing the bonding of projects tax dollars could be
saved and resources by reducing the complex federal grant administrative resources
required to track small pay outs over 15 years. Through a bond, communities would
have more immediate access to dollars for investment cutting out years of bureaucratic
tedium.

By approving the use of RESTORE Act dollars for bonding, the more than 87 million
residents and the millions of visitors along the Gulf of Mexico could soon see real
progress and know that, although the Deep Water Horizon incident happened seven
years ago, the government and BP have reached a settlement agreement and are now
working in concert expeditiously to improve the Gulf. Authorizing the acceleration of
funds through bonding presents a great opportunity to show the beneficial, efficient,
productive side of government.

Sincerely,

o s

Grover Robinson, Chairman
Gulf Consortium Board of Directors

GR/e|
Attachment

cc:  Gulf Consertium Board of Directors
Lynn Hoshihara, Esq., General Counsel, Guif Consortium
Ginger Delegal, Interim Manager, Gulf Consortium



February 17, 2017

The Honorable Charlie Christ

U.S. House of Representatives, Florida, 13t District
427 Cannon HOB

Washington, DC 20515

Re: RESTORE Act
Dear Representative Christ:

Following the tragedy of the Deep Water Horizon Oil Spill in 2010, Congress took bold
action to ensure that the communities harmed by the environmental and economic impact
of the worst oil spill in U.S. history would be restored and made more resilient with the
passage of the RESTORE Act.

In Florida, the promise of the Act has allowed those communities negatively impacted by
the oil spill to consider large scale infrastructure projects that could change their
economies for generations to come and allow them to invest in a way that before was
inconceivable because of the burden it would place on local taxpayers.

The RESTORE Act was passed years before a final penalty settlement with BP and other
responsible parties and in hindsight has created an unforeseen consequence that could
put a stop to large community investments — at a minimum for decades to come and —
quite possibly forever.

The settlement allows BP to pay its Clean Water Act fines over the course of the next 15
years in virtually equal installments. The primary tool that counties could use to eliminate
the delay of projects — tax exempt municipal bonding — has been deemed to be
unavailable under the RESTORE Act. See attached response from Treasury (specifically
response 30 on page 11). Therefore, we ask that you consider providing express
Congressional authorization to allow communities hit by this catastrophe to

100 South Monroe Street
Tallahassee, FL 32301



February 17, 2017
Page 2

bond the RESTORE dollars and allow restoration projects to begin sooner rather than
decades later. In addition, by authorizing the bonding of projects tax dollars could be
saved and resources by reducing the complex federal grant administrative resources
required to track small pay outs over 15 years. Through a bond, communities would
have more immediate access to dollars for investment cutting out years of bureaucratic
tedium.

By approving the use of RESTORE Act dollars for bonding, the more than 87 million
residents and the millions of visitors along the Guif of Mexico could soon see real
progress and know that, although the Deep Water Horizon incident happened seven
years ago, the government and BP have reached a seitlement agreement and are now
working in concert expeditiously to improve the Gulf. Authorizing the acceleration of
funds through bonding presents a great opportunity to show the beneficial, efficient,
productive side of government.

Sincerely,

S s

Grover Robinson, Chairman
Gulf Consortium Board of Directors

GR/el
Attachment

cc.  Gulf Consortium Board of Directors
Lynn Hoshihara, Esq., General Counsel, Gulf Consortium
Ginger Delegal, Interim Manager, Gulf Consortium



GUL

CONSORTIUM

February 17, 2017

The Honorable Alcee Hastings

U.S. House of Representatives, Florida, 20t District
2353 Rayburn Office Bldg

Washington D.C. 20515

Re: RESTORE Act
Dear Representative Hastings:

Following the tragedy of the Deep Water Horizon Oil Spill in 2010, Congress took bold
action to ensure that the communities harmed by the environmental and econemic impact
of the worst oil spill in U.S. history would be restored and made more resilient with the
passage of the RESTORE Act.

In Florida, the promise of the Act has allowed those communities negatively impacted by
the oil spill to consider large scale infrastructure projects that could change their
economies for generations to come and allow them to invest in a way that before was
inconceivable because of the burden it would place on local taxpayers.

The RESTORE Act was passed years before a final penalty settlement with BP and other
responsible parties and in hindsight has created an unforeseen consequence that could
put a stop to large community investments — at a minimum for decades to come and -
quite possibly forever.

The settlement allows BP to pay its Clean Water Act fines over the course of the next 15
years in virtually equal installments. The primary tool that counties could use to eliminate
the delay of projects — tax exempt municipal bonding — has been deemed to be
unavailable under the RESTORE Act. See attached response from Treasury (specifically
response 30 on page 11). Therefore, we ask that you consider providing express
Congressional authorization to allow communities hit by this catastrophe to

100 South Monroe Street
Tallahassee, FL. 32301



February 17, 2017
Page 2

bond the RESTORE dollars and allow restoration projects to begin sooner rather than
decades later. In addition, by authorizing the bonding of projects tax dollars could be
saved and resources by reducing the complex federal grant administrative resources
required to track small pay outs over 15 years. Through a bond, communities would
have more immediate access to dollars for investment cutting out years of bureaucratic
tedium.

By approving the use of RESTORE Act dollars for bonding, the more than 87 million
residents and the millions of visitors along the Gulf of Mexico could soon see real
progress and know that, although the Deep Water Horizon incident happened seven
years ago, the government and BP have reached a settlement agreement and are now
working in concert expeditiously to improve the Gulf. Authorizing the acceleration of
funds through bonding presents a great opportunity to show the beneficial, efficient,
productive side of government.

Sincerely,

S s

Grover Robinson, Chairman
Gulf Consortium Board of Directors

GR/el
Attachment

cc:  Gulf Consortium Board of Directors
Lynn Hoshihara, Esq., General Counsel, Gulf Consortium
Ginger Delegal, interim Manager, Gulf Consortium



CONSORTIUM

February 17, 2017

The Honorable Stephanie Murphy

U. S. House of Representatives, Florida, 7% District
1237 Longworth HOB

Washington, DC 20515

Re: RESTORE Act
Dear Representative Murphy:

Following the tragedy of the Deep Water Horizon Qil Spill in 2010, Congress took bold
action to ensure that the communities harmed by the environmental and economic impact
of the worst oil spill in U.S. history would be restored and made more resilient with the
passage of the RESTORE Act.

In Florida, the promise of the Act has allowed those communities negatively impacted by
the oil spill to consider large scale infrastructure projects that could change their
economies for generations to come and allow them to invest in a way that before was
inconceivable because of the burden it would place on local taxpayers.

The RESTORE Act was passed years before a final penalty settlement with BP and other
responsible parties and in hindsight has created an unforeseen consequence that could
put a stop to large community investments — at a minimum for decades to come and —
quite possibly forever.

The settlement allows BP to pay its Clean Water Act fines over the course of the next 15
years in virtually equal installments. The primary tool that counties could use to eliminate
the delay of projects — tax exempt municipal bonding — has been deemed to be
unavailable under the RESTORE Act. See attached response from Treasury (specifically
response 30 on page 11). Therefore, we ask that you consider providing express
Congressional authorization to allow communities hit by this catastrophe to

100 South Monroe Street
Tallahassee, FL. 32301



February 17, 2017
Page 2

bond the RESTORE dollars and allow restoration projects to begin sooner rather than
decades later. In addition, by authorizing the bonding of projects tax dollars could be
saved and resources by reducing the complex federal grant administrative resources
required to track small pay outs over 15 years. Through a bond, communities would
have more immediate access to dollars for investment cutting out years of bureaucratic
tedium.

By approving the use of RESTORE Act dollars for bonding, the more than 87 million
residents and the millions of visitors along the Gulf of Mexico could soon see real
progress and know that, although the Deep Water Horizon incident happened seven
years ago, the government and BP have reached a settlement agreement and are now
working in concert expeditiously to improve the Gulf. Authorizing the acceleration of
funds through bonding presents a great opportunity to show the beneficial, efficient,
productive side of government.

Sincerely,

S s

Grover Robinson, Chairman
Gulf Consortium Board of Directors

GR/el
Attachment

cC: Gulf Consortium Board of Directors
Lynn Hoshihara, Esq., General Counsel, Gulf Consortium
Ginger Delegal, Interim Manager, Gulf Consortium



——

GULF2

CONSORTIUM

February 17, 2017

The Honorable Matt Gaetz

U. S. House of Representatives, Florida, 15! District
507 Cannon House Office Building

Washington, DC 20515

Re: RESTORE Act
Dear Representative Gaetz:

Following the tragedy of the Deep Water Horizon OQil Spill in 2010, Congress took bold
action to ensure that the communities harmed by the environmental and economic impact
of the worst ail spill in U.S. history would be restored and made more resilient with the
passage of the RESTORE Act.

In Florida, the promise of the Act has allowed those communities negatively impacted by
the oil spill to consider large scale infrastructure projects that could change their
economies for generations to come and allow them to invest in a way that before was
inconceivable because of the burden it would place on local taxpayers.

The RESTORE Act was passed years before a final penalty settiement with BP and other
responsible parties and in hindsight has created an unforeseen consequence that could
put a stop to large community investments — at a minimum for decades to come and —
quite possibly forever.

The settlement allows BP to pay its Clean Water Act fines over the course of the next 15
years in virtually equal installments. The primary tool that counties could use to eliminate
the delay of projects — tax exempt municipal bonding — has been deemed to be
unavailable under the RESTORE Act. See attached response from Treasury (specifically
response 30 on page 11). Therefore, we ask that you consider providing express
Congressional authorization to allow communities hit by this catastrophe to

100 South Monroe Street
Tallahassee, FL 32301



February 17, 2017
Page 2

bond the RESTORE dollars and allow restoration projects to begin sooner rather than
decades later. In addition, by authorizing the bonding of projects tax dollars could be
saved and resources by reducing the complex federal grant administrative resources
required to track small pay outs over 15 years. Through a bond, communities would
have more immediate access to dollars for investment cutting out years of bureaucratic
tedium.

By approving the use of RESTORE Act dollars for bonding, the more than 87 million
residents and the millions of visitors along the Guif of Mexico could soon see real
progress and know that, although the Deep Water Horizon incident happened seven
years ago, the government and BP have reached a settiement agreement and are now
working in concert expeditiously to improve the Gulf. Authorizing the acceleration of
funds through bonding presents a great opportunity to show the beneficial, efficient,
productive side of government.

Sincerely,

o s

Grover Robinson, Chairman
Gulf Consortium Board of Directors

GR/el
Attachment

cc:  Gulf Consortium Board of Directors
Lynn Hoshihara, Esqg., General Counsel, Guif Consortium
Ginger Delegal, Interim Manager, Guilf Consortium



GUL

CONSORTIUM

February 17, 2017

The Honorable Daniel Webster

U. S. House of Representatives, Florida, 11 District
1210 Longworth House Office Bldg

Washington, D.C. 20515

Re: RESTORE Act
Dear Representative Webster:

Following the tragedy of the Deep Water Horizon Qil Spill in 2010, Congress took bold
action to ensure that the communities harmed by the environmental and economic impact
of the worst oil spill in U.S. history would be restored and made more resilient with the
passage of the RESTORE Act.

In Florida, the promise of the Act has allowed those communities negatively impacted by
the oil spill to consider large scale infrastructure projects that could change their
economies for generations to come and allow them to invest in a way that before was
inconceivable because of the burden it would place on local taxpayers.

The RESTORE Act was passed years before a final penalty settlement with BP and other
responsible parties and in hindsight has created an unforeseen consequence that could
put a stop to large community investments — at a minimum for decades to come and —
quite possibly forever.

The settlement allows BP to pay its Clean Water Act fines over the course of the next 15
years in virtually equal installments. The primary tool that counties could use to eliminate
the delay of projects — tax exempt municipal bonding — has been deemed to be
unavailable under the RESTORE Act. See attached response from Treasury (specifically
response 30 on page 11). Therefore, we ask that you consider providing express
Congressional authorization to allow communities hit by this catastrophe to

100 South Monroe Street
Tallahassee, FL. 32301



February 17, 2017
Page 2

bond the RESTORE dollars and allow restoration projects to begin sooner rather than
decades later. In addition, by authorizing the bonding of projects tax dollars could be
saved and resources by reducing the complex federal grant administrative resources
required to track small pay outs over 15 years. Through a bond, communities would
have more immediate access to dollars for investment cutting out years of bureaucratic
tedium.

By approving the use of RESTORE Act dollars for bonding, the more than 87 million
residents and the millions of visitors along the Gulf of Mexico could soon see real
progress and know that, although the Deep Water Horizon incident happened seven
years ago, the government and BP have reached a settlement agreement and are now
working in concert expeditiously to improve the Gulf. Authorizing the acceleration of
funds through bonding presents a great opportunity to show the beneficial, efficient,
productive side of government,

Sincerely,

o s

Grover Robinson, Chairman
Gulf Consortium Board of Directors

GRY/e!
Attachment

cc:  Guif Consortium Board of Directors
Lynn Hoshihara, Esqg., General Counsel, Gulf Consortium
Ginger Delegal, Interim Manager, Gulf Consortium



February 17, 2017

The Honorable Brian Mast

U. S. House of Representatives, Florida, 18" District
2182 Rayburn House Office Building

Washington, DC 20515

Re: RESTORE Act
Dear Representative Mast:

Following the tragedy of the Deep Water Horizon Qil Spill in 2010, Congress took bold
action to ensure that the communities harmed by the environmental and economic impact
of the worst oil spill in U.S. history would be restored and made more resilient with the
passage of the RESTORE Act.

In Florida, the promise of the Act has allowed those communities negatively impacted by
the oil spill to consider large scale infrastructure projects that could change their
economies for generations to come and allow them to invest in a way that before was
inconceivable because of the burden it would place on local taxpayers.

The RESTORE Act was passed years before a final penalty settlement with BP and other
responsible parties and in hindsight has created an unforeseen consequence that could
put a stop to large community investments — at a minimum for decades to come and —
quite possibly forever.

The settlement allows BP to pay its Clean Water Act fines over the course of the next 15
years in virtually equal installments. The primary tool that counties could use to eliminate
the delay of projects — tax exempt municipal bonding — has been deemed to be
unavailable under the RESTORE Act. See attached response from Treasury (specifically
response 30 on page 11). Therefore, we ask that you consider providing express
Congressional authorization to allow communities hit by this catastrophe to

100 South Monroe Street
Tallahassee, FL. 32301



February 17, 2017
Page 2

bond the RESTORE doliars and allow restoration projects to begin sooner rather than
decades later. In addition, by authorizing the bonding of projects tax dollars could be
saved and resources by reducing the complex federal grant administrative resources
required to track small pay outs over 15 years. Through a bond, communities would
have more immediate access to dollars for investment cutting out years of bureaucratic
tedium.

By approving the use of RESTORE Act dollars for bonding, the more than 87 million
residents and the millions of visitors along the Gulf of Mexico could soon see real
progress and know that, although the Deep Water Horizon incident happened seven
years ago, the government and BP have reached a settlement agreement and are now
working in concert expeditiously to improve the Gulf. Authorizing the acceleration of
funds through bending presents a great opportunity to show the beneficial, efficient,
productive side of government.

Sincerely,

o s

Grover Robinson, Chairman
Gulf Consortium Board of Directors

GR/ei
Attachment

cc:  Gulf Consortium Board of Directors
Lynn Hoshihara, Esq., General Counsel, Gulf Consortium
Ginger Delegal, Inferim Manager, Gulf Consortium



S =

GUL—L

CONSORTIUM

February 17, 2017

The Honorable Bill Posey

U. S. House of Representatives, Florida, 8™ District
2150 Raybum HOB

Washington, DC 20515

Re: RESTORE Act
Dear Representative Posey:

Following the tragedy of the Deep Water Horizon Qil Spill in 2010, Congress took bold
action to ensure that the communities harmed by the environmental and economic impact
of the worst oil spill in U.S. history would be restored and made more resilient with the
passage of the RESTORE Act.

In Florida, the promise of the Act has allowed those communities negatively impacted by
the oil spill to consider large scale infrastructure projects that could change their
economies for generations to come and allow them to invest in a way that before was
inconceivable because of the burden it would place on local taxpayers.

The RESTORE Act was passed years before a final penalty settiement with BP and other
responsible parties and in hindsight has created an unforeseen consequence that could
put a stop to large community investments — at a minimum for decades to come and —
quite possibly forever.

The settlement allows BP to pay its Clean Water Act fines over the course of the next 15
years in virtually equal installments. The primary tool that counties could use to eliminate
the delay of projects — tax exempt municipal bonding — has been deemed to be
unavailable under the RESTORE Act. See attached response from Treasury (specifically
response 30 on page 11). Therefore, we ask that you consider providing express
Congressional authorization to allow communities hit by this catastrophe to

100 South Monroe Street
Tallahassee, FL 32301



February 17, 2017
Page 2

bond the RESTORE doliars and allow restoration projects to begin sooner rather than
decadss later. In addition, by authorizing the bonding of projects tax dollars could be
saved and resources by reducing the complex federal grant administrative resources
required to track small pay outs over 15 years. Through a bond, communities would
have more immediate access to dollars for investment cutting out years of bureaucratic
tedium.

By approving the use of RESTORE Act dollars for bonding, the more than 87 million
residents and the millions of visitors along the Gulf of Mexico could soon see real
progress and know that, although the Deep Water Horizon incident happened seven
years ago, the government and BP have reached a settlement agreement and are now
working in concert expeditiously to improve the Gulf. Authorizing the acceleration of
funds through bonding presents a great opportunity to show the beneficial, efficient,
productive side of government.

Sincerely,

S s

Grover Robinson, Chairman
Gulf Consortium Board of Directors

GRf/el
Attachment

cc:  Gulf Consortium Board of Directors
Lynn Hoshihara, Esq., General Counsel, Gulf Consortium
Ginger Delegal, Interim Manager, Gulf Consortium



CONSORTIUM

February 17, 2017

The Honorable Tom Rooney

U. S. House of Representatives, Florida, 17" District
2160 Rayburn HOB

Washington, DC 20515

Re: RESTORE Act
Dear Representative Rooney:

Following the tragedy of the Deep Water Horizon Qil Spill in 2010, Congress took bold
action to ensure that the communities harmed by the envirocnmental and economic impact
of the worst cil spill in U.S. history would be restored and made more resilient with the
passage of the RESTORE Act.

In Florida, the promise of the Act has allowed those communities negatively impacted by
the oil spill to consider large scale infrastructure projects that could change their
economies for generations to come and allow them to invest in a way that before was
inconceivable because of the burden it would place on local taxpayers.

The RESTORE Act was passed years before a final penalty settlement with BP and other
responsible parties and in hindsight has created an unforeseen consequence that could
put a stop to large community investments — at a minimum for decades to come and —
quite possibly forever.

The settlement allows BP to pay its Clean Water Act fines over the course of the next 15
years in virtually equal installments. The primary tool that counties could use to eliminate
the delay of projects — tax exempt municipal bonding — has been deemed to be
unavailable under the RESTORE Act. See attached response from Treasury (specifically
response 30 on page 11). Therefore, we ask that you consider providing express
Congressional authorization to allow communities hit by this catastrophe to

100 South Monroe Street
Tallahassee, FL. 32301



February 17, 2017
Page 2

bond the RESTORE doliars and allow restoration projects to begin sooner rather than
decades later. In addition, by authorizing the bonding of projects tax dollars could be
saved and resources by reducing the complex federal grant administrative resources
required to track small pay ouis over 15 years. Through a bond, communities would
have more immediate access to dollars for investment cutting out years of bureaucratic
tedium.

By approving the use of RESTORE Act dollars for bonding, the more than 87 million
residents and the millions of visitors along the Guif of Mexico could soon see real
progress and know that, although the Deep Water Horizon incident happened seven
years ago, the government and BP have reached a seitiement agreement and are now
working in concert expeditiously to improve the Guif. Authorizing the acceleration of
funds through bonding presents a great opportunity to show the beneficial, efficient,
productive side of government.

Sincerely,

o s

Grover Robinson, Chairman
Gulf Consortium Board of Directors

GR/el
Attachment

cc: Guif Consortium Board of Directors
Lynn Hoshihara, Esq., General Counsel, Gulf Consortium
Ginger Delegal, Interim Manager, Gulf Consortium



GUL

CONSORTIUM

February 17, 2017

The Honorable lleana Ros-Lehtinen

U. S. House of Representatives, Florida, 27% District
2206 Rayburn HOB

Washington, DC 20515

Re: RESTORE Act
Dear Representative Ros-Lehtinen:

Following the tragedy of the Deep Water Horizon Oil Spill in 2010, Congress took bold
action to ensure that the communities harmed by the environmental and economic impact
of the worst oil spill in U.S. history would be restored and made more resilient with the
passage of the RESTORE Act.

In Florida, the promise of the Act has allowed those communities negatively impacted by
the oil spill to consider large scale infrastructure projects that could change their
economies for generations to come and allow them to invest in a way that before was
inconceivable because of the burden it would place on local taxpayers.

The RESTORE Act was passed years before a final penalty settiement with BP and other
responsible parties and in hindsight has created an unforeseen consequence that could
put a stop to large community investments — at a minimum for decades to come and —
quite possibly forever.

The settlement allows BP to pay its Clean Water Act fines over the course of the next 15
years in virtually equal installments. The primary tool that counties could use to eliminate
the delay of projects — tax exempt municipal bonding — has been deemed to be
unavailable under the RESTORE Act. See attached response from Treasury (specifically
response 30 onh page 11). Therefore, we ask that you consider providing express
Congressional authorization to allow communities hit by this catastrophe to

100 South Monroe Street
Tallahassee, FL 32301



February 17, 2017
Page 2

bond the RESTORE dollars and allow restoration projects to begin sooner rather than
decades later. In addition, by authorizing the bonding of projects tax dollars could be
saved and resources by reducing the complex federal grant administrative resources
required to track small pay outs over 15 years. Through a bond, communities would
have more immediate access to dollars for investment cutting out years of bureaucratic
tedium.

By approving the use of RESTORE Act dollars for bonding, the more than 87 million
residents and the millions of visitors along the Gulf of Mexico could sgon see real
progress and know that, although the Deep Water Horizon incident happened seven
years ago, the government and BP have reached a settlement agreement and are now
working in concert expeditiously to improve the Gulf. Authorizing the acceleration of
funds through bonding presents a great opportunity to show the beneficial, efficient,
productive side of government.

Sincerely,

o s

Grover Robinson, Chairman
Gulf Consortium Board of Directors

GR/e!
Attachment

cc:  Guif Consortium Board of Directors
Lynn Hoshihara, Esq., General Counsel, Gulf Consortium
Ginger Delegal, Interim Manager, Gulf Consortium



GUL

CONSORTIUM

February 17, 2017

The Honorable Debbie Wasserman-Schultz

U. S. House of Representatives, Florida, 23rd District
1114 Longworth HOB

Washington, DC 20515

Re: RESTORE Act
Dear Representative Wasserman-Schultz:

Following the tragedy of the Deep Water Horizon Oil Spill in 2010, Congress took bold
action to ensure that the communities harmed by the environmental and economic impact
of the worst oil spill in U.S. history would be restored and made more resilient with the
passage of the RESTORE Act.

In Florida, the promise of the Act has allowed those communities negatively impacted by
the oil spill to consider large scale infrastructure projects that could change their
economies for generations to come and allow them to invest in a way that before was
inconceivable because of the burden it would place on local taxpayers.

The RESTORE Act was passed years before a final penalty settlement with BP and other
responsible parties and in hindsight has created an unforeseen consequence that could
put a stop to large community investments — at a minimum for decades to come and —
quite possibly forever.

The settlement allows BP to pay its Clean Water Act fines over the course of the next 15
years in virtually equal installments. The primary tool that counties could use to eliminate
the delay of projects — tax exempt municipal bonding — has been deemed to be
unavailable under the RESTORE Act. See attached response from Treasury (specifically
response 30 on page 11). Therefore, we ask that you consider providing express
Congressional authorization to allow communities hit by this catastrophe to

100 South Monroe Street
Tallahassee, FL 32301



February 17, 2017
Page 2

bond the RESTORE dollars and allow restoration projects to begin sooner rather than
decades later. In addition, by authorizing the bonding of projects tax dollars could be
saved and resources by reducing the complex federal grant administrative resources
required to track small pay outs over 15 years. Through a bond, communities would
have more immediate access to dollars for investment cutting out years of bureaucratic
tedium.

By approving the use of RESTORE Act dollars for bonding, the more than 87 million
residents and the millions of visitors along the Guif of Mexico could soon see real
progress and know that, although the Deep Water Horizon incident happened seven
years ago, the government and BP have reached a settlement agreement and are now
working in concert expeditiously to improve the Gulf. Authorizing the acceleration of
funds through bonding presents a great opportunity to show the beneficial, efficient,
productive side of government.

Sincerely,

o s

Grover Robinson, Chairman
Gulf Consortium Board of Directors

GR/el
Attachment

cc:  Gulf Consortium Board of Directors
Lynn Hoshihara, Esq., General Counsel, Gulf Consortium
Ginger Delegal, interim Manager, Gulf Consortium



= e

L ( A '\\1\.\

GUL—=

CONSORTIUM

February 17, 2017

The Honorable Val Demmings

U. S. House of Representatives, Florida, 10 District
238 Cannon House Office Building

Washington, DC 20515

Re: RESTORE Act
Dear Representative Demmings:

Following the tragedy of the Deep Water Horizon Qil Spill in 2010, Congress took bold
action to ensure that the communities harmed by the environmental and economic impact
of the worst oil spill in U.S. history would be restored and made more resilient with the
passage of the RESTORE Act.

In Florida, the promise of the Act has allowed those communities negatively impacted by
the oil spill to consider large scale infrastructure projects that could change their
economies for generations to come and allow them to invest in a way that before was
inconceivable because of the burden it would place on local taxpayers.

The RESTORE Act was passed years before a final penalty settlement with BP and other
responsible parties and in hindsight has created an unforeseen consequence that could
put a stop to large community investments — at a minimum for decades to come and -
quite possibly forever.

The settlement allows BP to pay its Clean Water Act fines over the course of the next 15
years in virtually equal installments. The primary tool that counties could use to eliminate
the delay of projects — tax exempt municipal bonding — has been deemed to be
unavailable under the RESTORE Act. See attached response from Treasury (specifically
response 30 on page 11). Therefore, we ask that you consider providing express
Congressional authorization to allow communities hit by this catastrophe to

100 South Monroe Street
Tallahassee, FL. 32301



February 17, 2017
Page 2

bond the RESTORE doliars and allow restoration projects to begin soconer rather than
decades later. In addition, by authorizing the bonding of projects tax dollars could be
saved and resources by reducing the complex federal grant adminisirative resources
required to track smali pay outs over 15 years. Through a bond, communities would
have more immediate access to dollars for investment cutting out years of bureaucratic
tedium.

By approving the use of RESTORE Act dollars for bonding, the more than 87 million
residents and the millions of visitors along the Gulf of Mexico could scon see real
progress and know that, although the Deep Water Horizon incident happened seven
years ago, the government and BP have reached a settlement agreement and are now
working in concert expeditiously to improve the Gulf. Authorizing the acceleration of
funds through bonding presents a great opportunity to show the beneficial, efficient,
productive side of government.

Sincerely,

o s

Grover Robinson, Chairman
Gulf Consortium Board of Directors

GR/el
Attachment

cc:  Gulf Consortium Board of Directors
Lynn Hoshihara, Esqg., General Counsel, Guif Consortium
Ginger Delegal, Interim Manager, Gulf Consortium



February 17, 2017

The Honorable Ted Yoho

U. S. House of Representatives, Florida, 3™ District
511 Cannon House Cffice Building

Washington, DC 20515

Re: RESTORE Act
Dear Representative Yoho:

Following the tragedy of the Deep Water Horizon Oil Spill in 2010, Congress took bold
action to ensure that the communities harmed by the environmental and economic impact
of the worst oil spill in U.S. history would be restored and made more resilient with the
passage of the RESTORE Act.

In Florida, the promise of the Act has allowed those communities negatively impacted by
the oil spill to consider large scale infrastructure projects that could change their
economies for generations to come and allow them to invest in a way that before was
inconceivable because of the burden it would place on local taxpayers.

The RESTORE Act was passed years before a final penalty settlement with BP and other
responsible parties and in hindsight has created an unforeseen consequence that could
put a stop to large community investments — at a minimum for decades to come and —
quite possibly forever.

The settlement allows BP to pay its Clean Water Act fines over the course of the next 15
years in virtually equal installments. The primary tool that counties could use to eliminate
the delay of projects — tax exempt municipal bonding — has been deemed to be
unavailable under the RESTORE Act. See attached response from Treasury (specifically
response 30 on page 11). Therefore, we ask that you consider providing express
Congressional authorization to allow communities hit by this catastrophe to

100 South Monroe Street
Tallahassee, FL. 32301



February 17, 2017
Page 2

bond the RESTORE dollars and allow restoration projects to begin sconer rather than
decades later. In addition, by authorizing the bonding of projects tax dollars could be
saved and resources by reducing the complex federal grant administrative resources
required to track small pay outs over 15 years. Through a bond, communities would
have more immediate access to dollars for investment cutting out years of bureaucratic
tedium.

By approving the use of RESTORE Act dollars for bonding, the more than 87 million
residents and the millions of visitors along the Gulf of Mexico could soon see real
progress and know that, although the Deep Water Horizon incident happened seven
years ago, the government and BP have reached a settlement agreement and are now
working in concert expeditiously to improve the Gulf. Authorizing the acceleration of
funds through bonding presents a great opportunity to show the beneficial, efficient,
productive side of government.

Sincerely,

o s

Grover Robinson, Chairman
Gulf Consortium Board of Directors

GR/el
Attachment

cC: Gulf Consortium Board of Directors
Lynn Hoshihara, Esq., General Counsel, Guif Consortium
Ginger Delegal, Inierim Manager, Gulf Consortium



GUL

CONSORTIUM

February 17, 2017

The Honorable Frederica Wilson

U. S. House of Representatives, Florida, 24% District
2445 Rayburn HOB

Washington, DC 20515

Re: RESTORE Act
Dear Representative Wilson:

Following the tragedy of the Deep Water Horizon Qil Spill in 2010, Congress took bold
action to ensure that the communities harmed by the environmental and economic impact
of the worst oil spill in U.S. history would be restored and made more resilient with the
passage of the RESTORE Act.

In Florida, the promise of the Act has allowed those communities negatively impacted by
the oil spill to consider large scale infrastructure projects that could change their
economies for generations to come and allow them to invest in a way that before was
inconceivable because of the burden it would place on local taxpayers.

The RESTORE Act was passed years before a final penalty settlement with BP and other
responsible parties and in hindsight has created an unforeseen consequence that could
put a stop to large community investments — at a minimum for decades to come and -
quite possibly forever.

The settlement allows BP to pay its Clean Water Act fines over the course of the next 15
years in virtually equal instailments. The primary tool that counties could use to eliminate
the delay of projects — tax exempt municipal bonding — has been deemed to be
unavailable under the RESTORE Act. See attached response from Treasury (specifically
response 30 on page 11). Therefore, we ask that you consider providing express
Congressional authorization to allow communities hit by this catastrophe to

100 South Monroe Street
Tallahassee, FL. 32301



February 17, 2017
Page 2

bond the RESTORE dollars and allow restoration projects to begin sooner rather than
decades later. In addition, by authorizing the bonding of projects tax dollars could be
saved and resources by reducing the complex federal grant administrative resources
required to track small pay outs over 15 years. Through a bond, communities would
have more immediate access to dollars for investment cutting out years of bureaucratic
tedium.

By approving the use of RESTORE Act dollars for bonding, the more than 87 million
residents and the millions of visitors along the Gulf of Mexico could soon see real
progress and know that, although the Deep Water Horizon incident happened seven
years ago, the government and BP have reached a settlement agreement and are now
working in concert expeditiously to improve the Gulf. Authorizing the acceleration of
funds through bonding presents a great opportunity to show the beneficial, efficient,
productive side of government.

Sincerely,

o s

Grover Robinson, Chairman
Gulf Consortium Board of Directors

GR/el
Attachment

cc:  Gulf Consortium Board of Directors
Lynn Hoshihara, Esq., General Counsel, Gulf Consortium
Ginger Delegal, Interim Manager, Guif Consortium



CONSORTIUM

February 17, 2017

The Honorable Dennis Ross

U. S. House of Representatives, Florida, 15 District
436 Cannon HOB

Washington, D.C. 20515

Re: RESTORE Act
Dear Representative Ross:

Following the tragedy of the Deep Water Horizon Qil Spill in 2010, Congress took bold
action to ensure that the communities harmed by the environmental and economic impact
of the worst oil spill in U.S. history would be restored and made more resilient with the
passage of the RESTORE Act.

In Florida, the promise of the Act has allowed those communities negatively impacted by
the oil spill to consider large scale infrastructure projects that could change their
economies for generations to come and allow them to invest in a way that before was
inconceivable because of the burden it would place on local taxpayers.

The RESTORE Act was passed years before a final penalty settlement with BP and other
responsible parties and in hindsight has created an unforeseen consequence that could
put a stop to large community investments — at a minimum for decades to come and -
quite possibly forever.

The settlement allows BP to pay its Clean Water Act fines over the course of the next 15
years in virtuaily equal installments. The primary tool that counties could use to eliminate
the delay of projects — tax exempt municipal bonding — has been deemed to be
unavailable under the RESTORE Act. See attached response from Treasury (specifically
response 30 on page 11). Therefore, we ask that you consider providing express
Congressional authorization to allow communities hit by this catastrophe to

100 South Monroe Street
Tallahassee, FL. 32301



February 17, 2017
Page 2

bond the RESTORE dollars and allow restoration projects to begin sooner rather than
decades later. In addition, by authorizing the bonding of projects tax dollars could be
saved and resources by reducing the complex federal grant administrative resources
required to track small pay outs over 15 years. Through a bond, communities would
have more immediate access to dollars for investment cutting out years of bureaucratic
tedium.

By approving the use of RESTORE Act dollars for bonding, the more than 87 million
residents and the millions of visitors along the Guif of Mexico could soon see real
progress and know that, although the Deep Water Horizon incident happened seven
years ago, the government and BP have reached a settlement agreement and are now
working in concert expeditiously to improve the Gulf. Authorizing the acceleration of
funds through bonding presents a great opportunity to show the beneficial, efficient,
productive side of government.

Sincerely,

o s

Grover Robinson, Chairman
Gulf Consortium Board of Directors

GR/el
Attachment

cc:  Gulf Consortium Board of Directors
Lynn Hoshihara, Esq., General Counsel, Gulf Consortium
Ginger Delegal, Interim Manager, Gulf Consortium



	4.6.17_AGENDA
	FAR Notice
	2017 Appointments
	Sheet1

	AGENDA ITEM 6_Divider
	Item 6_Approval of 2.8.17 Minutes
	Gulf Consortium Board of Directors

	Item 6_2.8.17 Minutes
	AGENDA ITEM 7_Divider
	Item 7_Approval of Agreement for Management Services
	Item 7_Agreement for Mgmt Svcs btw the Gulf Consortium & the Balmoral Group, LL...
	AGENDA ITEM 8_Divider
	Item 8_Discussion of Options for Recording Meetings
	AGENDA ITEM 9_Divider
	Item 9_Receipt of FY 2015-2016 Audit
	Gulf Consortium Board of Directors

	Item 9_GC Final DRAFT Audit
	AGENDA ITEM 10_Divider
	Item 10_Update on Work Order #6
	Gulf Consortium Board of Directors

	AGENDA ITEM 11_Divider
	Item 11_Recommend Approval of Work Order #7
	Gulf Consortium Board of Directors

	Item 11_Draft Work Order #7
	AGENDA ITEM 12_Divider
	Item 12_Preview of Work Orer # 8
	Gulf Consortium Board of Directors

	Item 12_Draft Work Order #8
	AGENDA ITEM 13_Divider
	Item 13_Discussion on Conceptual Design and Feasibility Study
	Gulf Consortium Board of Directors

	AGENDA ITEM 14.1_Divider
	Item 14.1_Planning Grant Update FINAL
	Gulf Consortium Board of Directors

	AGENDA ITEM 14.2_Divider
	Item 14.2_Analysis of Work Orders Approved and Grant Award Amount
	Gulf Consortium Board of Directors

	AGENDA ITEM 15_Divider
	Item 15_ Update on Ability to bond Pot 3 funds
	Item 15_2.17.17_Florida Delegation Letters



